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Chairman’s Statement
BNk

Chong Tin Lung Benny
fxRi -

Executive Chairman & CEO
BUAT T AAT B

Dear Shareholders,

2013 has been a year of transformation and momentum for the Group.
As the newly appointed Executive Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, I respectfully reflect on what the Group has
accomplished strategically during the immediate past year. Most
notably, our Group completed a business restructuring exercise to
dispose of our non-car businesses, which in and of itself marks a
significant milestone in our Group’s history and development. We
believe streamlining our business to focus resources on the profitable
car business would set the stage for promising results in the years to

come.
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Chairman’s Statement

B2

Nevertheless, on behalf of the Board of Directors, I regret to report
that a loss attributable to shareholders of the Company of HK$48.0
million was recorded for the year ended 31 December 2013. The loss
for the year, though significantly reduced as compared to the loss of
HK$79.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2012, was mainly
impacted by two non-repeated items, namely the operating loss of
HK$10.6 million derived from the disposed non-car businesses and an
impairment loss on inventories of HK$26.2 million in our operations

in mainland China.

We will continue to employ a multi-faceted approach to our business.
Leveraging on our solid experience in the car business accumulated
over the past decades, we have meticulously formulated plans to drive

organic growth in various dimensions.

In Hong Kong, we desire to build on the success of our import,
distribution and after-sales service of Ferrari and Maserati cars. We
are committed to further investments in additional distribution,
showroom and after-sales facilities. Our confidence in our Hong Kong
operation remains strong and emphasis will be placed on further

strengthening profitability of our after-sales service.

In mainland China, against the backdrop of years of financial losses
in various segments, we decided to close down our loss-making
car dealership business operation in Nanjing in the second half of
2014 - this is in tandem with our other corporate initiatives to focus
resources on profitable locations where we are operating. On the other
hand, we endeavour to expand our pre-delivery inspection centre in
Shanghai servicing all import Ferrari and Maserati cars in mainland
China — we are committed to an expansion plan to accommodate an
anticipated increase in importation of Ferrari and Maserati cars to

mainland China.

In Macau, we see immense capacity for growth in this up-and-coming
location due to favourable market sentiment. As part of our growth
strategy, we are in the process of establishing a retail premises in
Macau which is expected to come into commercial operation by the
third quarter in 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement

B2

At the same time, we are reviewing our property portfolio to enhance
returns. We may adjust our property holding should appropriate

opportunities arise.

Today, our financial position has been ever strong. The Group has
generated net cash inflow from operating activities of HK$130.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, comparing to a net cash
outflow of HK$67.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
To further strengthen our capital base and financial capability, the
Company completed a share placement on 20 March 2014. The net
proceeds of HK$60.8 million were received on 18 March 2014.

We firmly believe that our collective efforts will result in better

performance of the Group in the future.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my
predecessor, Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard, who had shown much
dedication and valuable contribution to our Group in his past years
of service. I would also like to take this opportunity to express my
wholehearted thanks to all our Shareholders and the factory for their
continuous support. I like to thank my management team and all

employees of the Group for their commitment and contribution.

Chong Tin Lung Benny
Executive Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B P o % S M

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations was HK$1,182.8 million, representing a slight
decrease of 0.6% as compared to HK$1,190.2 million in 2012.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Gross profit margin from continuing operations in 2013 recorded a
decrease from 17.3% in 2012 to 16.3%. Accordingly, our gross profit
was decreased from HK$205.9 million in 2012 to HK$192.8 million
in 2013. The decrease of HK$13.1 million was mainly caused by the
inclusion in cost of sales of a one-off impairment loss on inventories
of HK$26.2 million as the Company has decided to close down its
car dealership business in Nanjing, the PRC in the first half of 2014.
Excluding this one-off impairment loss, the gross profit margin would

be 18.5%, a 1.2 percentage point increase as compared to 2012’s.
Other Income

For the year ended 2013, other income from continuing operations
amounted to HK$19.1 million (2012: HK$16.3 million). The net

increase of HK$2.8 million was mainly contributed by the increase in

subsidies income from our suppliers.
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Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses from continuing operations amounted to a net
gain of HK$0.6 million (2012: loss of HK$2.8 million) which included
net foreign exchange gain of HK$6.3 million, gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment of HK$1 million but partially offset by
an impairment of trade and other receivables of HK$6.4 million and
goodwill of HK$0.3 million.

Selling and Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

Selling and distribution costs and administrative expenses from
continuing operations in 2013 aggregated to HK$242.1 million (2012
restated: HK$219.2 million), which accounted for 20.5% (2012 restated:
18.4%) of revenue. This increase of HK$22.9 million was mainly due
to increase in costs of rental, marketing expenses which included the
cost of hosting the event “Ferrari’s 30th Anniversary with Auto Italia
in Hong Kong” and depreciation by HK$8.5 million, HK$3.2 million
and HK$2.9 million, respectively.

Finance Costs

Finance costs from continuing operations in 2013 were reduced by
16.3% to HK$13.1 million (2012: HK$15.6 million).

Disposal of Non-car Business

On 30 December 2013, the Group completed the disposal of its
electrical appliances, fashion apparels, accessories and motor yacht
business (“Non-car Business”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$112.6 million. The Group recorded a slight loss on disposal of
Non-car Business amounted to HK$0.5 million. The loss on disposal
together with the operating loss of Non-car Business of HK$10.0
million was recorded as loss from discontinued operations in the

Group’s consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013 was HK$48.0 million (2012: loss of HK$79.3 million).
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FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has been financed by a combination of its equity capital

base, cash flow generated from operations and bank borrowings.

Cash and cash equivalents (including pledged bank deposits) at 31
December 2013 were HK$342.6 million (2012: HK$237.4 million).
A net cash inflow of HK$199.0 million (2012: HK$32.6 million) was
generated in 2013 which represented a net cash inflow from operating
activities of HK$130.0 million, investing activities amounted to
HK$116.5 million, and partially offset by net cash used in financing
activities of HK$47.5 million.

The Group’s total borrowings, including an amount due to a
substantial Shareholder of HK$26 million, at 31 December 2013
amounted to HK$222.3 million (2012: HK$338.1 million), which
included long term borrowings of HK$10.0 million (2012: HK$11.6

million).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group maintained a net cash position
of HK$120.3 million (2012: net cash deficit of HK$100.7 million). The
current ratio was 1.12 (2012: 1.15), based on current assets of HK$589.8
million (2012 restated: HK$818.4 million) and current liabilities of
HK$524.9 million (2012 restated: HK$709.7 million).
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The Group had trading facilities at 31 December 2013 amounting to
HK$410.8 million (2012: HK$452.4 million) of which HK$243.7 million
(2012: HK$438.7 million) was utilized.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s purchases are mainly conducted in HK Dollar, Renminbi
and US Dollar whilst sales are mainly conducted in HK Dollar and
Renminbi. The fluctuation of Renminbi during the year did not
have any material adverse effect on the Group’s results. In addition,
the Group will conduct periodic review of its exposure to foreign

exchange risk.
Pledge of Assets

Certain of the Group’s properties, inventories, cash deposits and all
assets of certain subsidiaries were pledged as at 31 December 2013 in
an aggregate amount of HK$176.0 million (2012: HK$395.6 million) to

secure loans and facilities granted.
Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no capital commitments as at 31 December 2013 (2012:

HK$4.5 million). The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2013 and 2012.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Continuing Operations
Luxury Cars

Ferrari

Unit sales of Ferrari had dropped 13.5% in 2013 as compared to 2012.
This was due to fewer units of cars allocated and delivered to our

Hong Kong operation from the factory.

2013 marked the year of the launch of Ferrari’s successor to the
much admired, limited series car known as the Enzo. The new car’s
name was announced as “LaFerrari”, and the factory has planned to
produce in a very limited edition for the world up to the end of 2015.
Customers from Hong Kong and Macau have expressed great interest
in this new car with demand far outstripping supply, despite a pre-
tax price of US$1.35 million. The allocation of the Group remains
confidential but represented a big step forward from its quota of 11

units of Enzo 10 years ago.
Maserati

Maserati sales performed well in 2013. Unit sales increased
significantly by 62.2% as compared to 2012.

Demand for Maserati’s two-door range of coupes and convertibles
remains relatively high given the condition of the local car market and

the aggressive sales approach of many competitors.

The final six (run-out) Quattroportes (Maserati’s four-door saloon)
were delivered early in the year in preparation for the arrival of the
sixth generation which was launched in the Hong Kong market at the
end of 2012. The first left-hand-drive display car started to arrive in
Hong Kong in the spring of 2013 and cars were delivered to Macau in
late of June 2013. The first right-hand-drive display car for the Hong
Kong market arrived in the third quarter of 2013.

On the other hand, during the year, the Company was preparing for
the arrival of the new Maserati Ghibli S, the brand’s first mid-sized
luxury sports sedan. It was eventually launched in the Hong Kong

market early 2014 to high acclaim.
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After-sales Service

Workshop service revenue for the full year grew by 5.3% to HK$146.9
million as compared to 2012. This was primarily due to a continuing
increase in servicing in our pre-delivery inspection center in Shanghai,
the PRC.

Discontinued Operations

On 30 December 2013, the Group completed the disposal of Non-
car Business. The operating loss for the year from Non-car Business
amounted to HK$10.0 million (2012: Loss of HK$64.3 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2013, after the disposal of Non-car Business, the
total number of employees of the Group was 211 (2012: 431).

The management is committed to continuous staff training and
development to ensure the standard of our employees remains
competitive in the marketplace. Leadership training seminars for our
managerial and supervisory staff were conducted during the year to
enhance their skills and spirits of co-operation. We are confident that
our employees will continue to grow with the business and contribute
their best to the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Repayment of loan from VMS Investment Group Limited

On 16 July 2013, Auto Italia Limited (“AIL”), an effectively
75.4%-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower entered into a
loan note with VMS Investment Group Limited (“VMSIG”) as lender
in relation to a revolving loan facility in the amount of HK$26 million
(“Revolving Loan”). VMSIG is interested in approximately 23.81% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2013. The
Revolving Loan was unsecured and non-interest bearing. Pursuant to
the terms of the Revolving Loan, AIL shall notify VMSIG a proposed
date of repayment for each drawdown which may be extended by
VMSIG at its sole discretion at the request of AIL. The proceeds of
the Revolving Loan was used to finance partially the purchase of the
anticipated increase in scheduled delivery of new cars in the coming
months as well as for the general working capital of car business of the
Group. On 28 August 2013, AIL had drawn down the loan amount of
HK$26 million which was fully repaid on 17 January 2014.
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Share Placement

On 7 March 2014, arrangements were made for a private placement
to not less than six independent investors of 500,000,000 shares of
HK$0.02 each in the Company, at a price of HK$0.125 per share (the
“Placing”) representing a discount of approximately 13.79% to the
closing market price of the Company’s share on 7 March 2014.

The net proceeds from the Placing of approximately HK$60.8 million
will be used as general working capital of the Group. These new
shares were issued under the mandate granted to the Directors at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2013
and rank pari passu with other shares in all respects.

The Placing was completed on 20 March 2014.

OUTLOOK

Following the completion of the disposal of the Non-car Business on
30 December 2013, the Group has re-assessed its existing business
strategies in import, distribution and after-sales service of Ferrari
and Maserati cars in Hong Kong, Macau and Nanjing, the PRC, and
its pre-delivery inspection service in Shanghai, the PRC. Subsequent
to the strategic review, the Board has decided to close down its
Nanjing dealership business in the second half of 2014, as the sales
performance of it was not satisfactory and suffered heavy operating
losses in the past five years. The strategic repositioning offers a
good opportunity for the Group to redeploy its resources into the
profitable premium car distribution business which is expected
to help strengthen this business segment and create value for our
Shareholders. As such, the Group will focus continuously on the
business of import, distribution and after-sales service of Ferrari and
Maserati cars in Hong Kong and Macau as well as the pre-delivery

inspection service in Shanghai, the PRC.
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Looking forward, the Group’s order portfolio for Ferrari continues
to remain strong with an average overall lead-time of around a
year. A new model, the 458 Speciale, expected to be launched in the
second quarter of 2014, has added fresh impetus. In addition, the
first deliveries of Ferrari’s next ‘Supercar’, the LaFerrari, will begin
in the second quarter of 2014. Although the car has a retail price of
US$1.35 million, the growing number of car collectors in Hong Kong
has ensured that the Group has achieved a relatively high allocation of

this limited series model.

Maserati’s profile continues to increase and the brand is currently
achieving an overall segment share of 8%. The Maserati Ghibli
represents yet another new model but it has been designed for the
mid-sized luxury sports sedan. Smaller and priced to compete in a
much larger part of the market, the Group forecasts a significant level
of penetration in market segment. We successfully held a Maserati
Ghibli launch party in January 2014, which was well received by our
VIP customers and the public. We see accumulating orders of this

model in our order book.

To cope with the high volume of Ferrari and Maserati new car
deliveries starting from the third quarter of 2014, the after-sales
service expansion project is on its way to enhance our existing service
capacity. In addition, a state of the art new service center in Hong
Kong Island is expected to be ready for operation in 2015 in order to
cater for high market demand with the increase of unit in operation.
Our objective is always to ensure high customer satisfaction which is

today’s key to success in the service sector.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Aged 41, was appointed as an Executive Director and the Vice-
Chairman of the Company on 13 June 2013 and has been re-designated
as the Executive Chairman of the Company, the Chairman of each
of the nomination committee, Executive Directors’ committee and
financial control committee of the Board and has been appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Company on 24 October 2013. He
is the chairman of VMS Investment Group Limited (“VMSIG”), a
substantial Shareholder. Mr. Chong has accumulated over 18 years of
experience in the financial and investments industry. VMSIG is the
holding company of a group of companies principally engaged in the
provision of proprietary investments, asset management, securities
brokerage and corporate finance advisory services, and currently
indirectly owns approximately 20.37% shareholding in the Company.
Mr. Chong founded the VMS Investment Group in 2006 and is a
Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Chong obtained a Bachelor’s degree
of Science in Commerce from the University of Toronto in 1994 and
a Master’s degree of Science in Financial Engineering from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2000.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen

Aged 47, has been an Executive Director since January 2012. He is the
managing director, corporate finance of VMS Securities Limited and
has more than 19 years of experience in corporate finance and business

development.

Mr. Jacobsen is a director of Gustavo International Limited and
Maini Investments Limited, both are private companies. He is also
an independent non-executive director of Hycomm Wireless Limited
(Stock code: 499), China Financial Leasing Group Limited (Stock code:
2312), Perception Digital Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1822) and
Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (Stock code: 723), all companies
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and abc Multiactive Limited (Stock
code: 8131), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive director
of King Stone Energy Group Limited (Stock code: 663), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, for the period from 26 September 2008
to 30 September 2011. He obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree from
the University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration

from the University of British Columbia in Canada.
Mr. Lam Chi Yan

Aged 47, was appointed as Executive Director on 13 June 2013. He
has over 19 years of experience in the automobile industry. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Lam was a general manager of a 4S5 dealership
store of a leading luxury automobile brand in Guangdong Province
of the PRC from October 2005 to July 2012. He was a consultant of Al
Administration Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
from January 2013 to June 2013. Mr. Lam obtained an Associate degree
of Science in Automotive Engineering and an Associate degree of
Science in Business Administration from the Skyline College, San
Bruno, United States of America in 1991 and 1994 respectively, and
a Bachelor’s degree of Arts in Industrial Arts from the San Francisco
State University, United States of America in 1994.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tan Boon Seng

Aged 58, has been an independent non-executive director of the
Company (“INED”) since April 1999 and is a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee and the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Tan obtained a
Master’s degree in Arts from the Cambridge University. Mr. Tan is the
chairman and managing director of Lee Hing Development Limited
(Stock code: 68), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He resigned as an independent nonexecutive director of
Genting Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 678), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from 10 January
2013. He is also an executive director of IGB Corporation Berhad, a
company listed on the stock exchange of Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
He was appointed as a non-executive director of PureCircle Limited,
a company listed on the London stock exchange, in August 2012 and

resigned from the same position in December 2012.
Dr. Antonio Maria Santos

Aged 57, has been an INED since September 2012 and is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company. He retired from the
Hong Kong Police Force in January 2012 after more than 30 years of
service. His last position was an Assistant Commander of a Police
District. Apart from volunteering for community services, Dr. Santos
was appointed as the chief operations officer of the Advance Tactics
Service Limited, which specialised in computer and technology
security, personal and corporate security, risk assessment and
management, and strategic advice on commercial laws as well as
listing rules, since July 2013. He is currently a part time lecturer
in the faculty of Crime & Investigation for associate degrees and
degrees. Dr. Santos obtained a PhD in business administration from
the Nueva Ecija University of Science and Technology in the Republic
of Philippines, a Master’s degree in management studies from the
University of Northumbria at Newcastle in the United Kingdom and
a Master’s degree in criminal justice from the Tarlac State University
in the Republic of Philippines. He is a Fellow of the Chartered
Management Institute, the United Kingdom. Dr. Santos is an
independent non-executive director of Willie International Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 273), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, since August 2012.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie

Aged 50, was appointed as INED on 21 June 2013 and is the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr.
Kong is an executive president of Express Investment International
Group Limited, which is a private investment holding company
located in Hong Kong, since January 2014. Before that he was a general
manager of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 286), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2012
to December 2013 and was responsible for its corporate development.
Mr. Kong was also a general manager — corporate development of
Goodtop Tin International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 195) from
September 2011 to August 2012, a general manager of Lam Soon
(Hong Kong) Limited (Stock Code: 411) from 2008 to late 2012 and
an assistant general manager of New World China Land Limited
(Stock Code: 917) from 1996 to 2002, all being companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Kong served in management
capacities in various private companies including New World TMT
Limited and Philips Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Kong is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants. He obtained a Honours Diploma in Accounting from
Hong Kong Baptist College, currently known as the Hong Kong
Baptist University, in 1986.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence

Appointed as the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and
the Authorised Representative of the Company with effect from 30
December 2013. He has substantial experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Hon
worked in an international accounting firm before he was appointed
to various senior financial positions in a number of listed companies
in Hong Kong. He holds a Master’s degree in business administration
(financial services) from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants

in England and Wales.
Mr. Herbert Adamczyk

Appointed as the Executive Vice Chairman of Auto Italia Limited,
a subsidiary of the Group since January 2013, and the Director and
Chief Operating Officer of China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc.,
an associated company of the Group. He has over 48 years” experience
in the automotive trade in Hong Kong. He has a motor engineering
background and has been with the Technorient Group, subsidiaries of
the Group, for 29 years. He is an Executive Committee member of The
Motor Traders Association of Hong Kong and The Italian Chamber of

Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau.
Mr. John Brian Newman

Appointed as the Managing Director of Auto Italia Limited since
January 2013. He has over 25 years’ experience with blue chip sports
and luxury car manufacturers and importers, and was a director
of a successful motor racing team in Europe. He holds a Diploma
in Business and Finance, is a qualified pilot and a member of the
Institute of the Motor Industry in the United Kingdom. Mr. Newman
is responsible for sales, marketing, distribution, dealer development,
media communications and customer relationship management of the

car business of the Group since 2005.
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Directors’ Report

o

The Directors present this annual report (the “Report”) and audited
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2013 of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company.

Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the import, marketing and
distribution of luxury and ultra-luxury cars. The activities and other
particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements.
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Details of segmental information are set out in Note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 and the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 56 of this Annual

Report.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil). No interim dividend was
paid during the year (2012: Nil).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 155.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
Information about the share options of the Company and details of
movements in the share options of the Company during the year are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in this Report
and in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 57 of this Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations of
HK$75,000 (2012: HK$106,000).

BORROWINGS
Details of the Group’s borrowings are set out in Note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements. No interest was capitalised by the

Group during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 86.5% of the Group’s
purchases during the year, 33.3% being attributable to the largest
supplier. The percentage of turnover attributable to the Group’s five

largest customers is less than 11.4% during the year.

As far as the Directors are aware, no Director, their associates or any
Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) has interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance between the Company or any of
its subsidiary companies, and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2013.

There was no contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling Shareholder or

any of its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2013.
DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny (appointed with effect from 13 June
2013 and re-designated as Executive Chairman and appointed
as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 24 October 2013)

Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard (resigned with effect from 24 October 2013)

Mr. Lee Man Bun Jeff (resigned with effect from 25 June 2013)

Mr. Wong Tik Tung (resigned with effect from 30 December 2013)

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen

Mr. Lam Chi Yan (appointed with effect from 13 June 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tan Boon Seng

Mr. Yin Pi Tak Peter (retired with effect from 30 May 2013)

Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan (retired with effect from 30 May 2013)

Dr. Antonio Maria Santos

Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie (appointed with effect from 21 June 2013)
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In accordance with Bye-law 99(A) of the bye-laws of the Company
(“Bye-laws”), Mr. Wiliam Keith Jacobsen and Dr. Antonio Maria
Santos will retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting (the “AGM”) and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

Mr. Tan Boon Seng was re-appointed as an INED at last year’s annual
general meeting for a term up to the date of the AGM. Since he has
been an INED for more than nine years, his further appointment will
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders
at the AGM pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Mr.
Tan will offer himself for reelection at the AGM.

The INEDs are also subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Bye-laws. The Company has received from each INED
an annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to the
independence assessing factors guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the

Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs to be independent.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B)(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of Directors subsequent to the date of the Company’s
interim report 2013 are set out below:

Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny entered into a service agreement dated
14 November 2013 with the Company for a term of two years
commencing from 13 June 2013 and he is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws. Mr. Chong
is entitled to an annual remuneration package of approximately
HK$2,016,000 plus an annual bonus at 2.5% on audited net profit of
the Group.

Mr. Lam Chi Yan entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of two years commencing from 13 June 2013 and he is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the Byelaws. Mr. Lam is entitled to an annual remuneration package
of approximately HK$1,800,000 plus an annual bonus which is based
on the achievement of certain Key Performance Indicators as set out
by the Group, provided that the total annual bonus payable to Mr.
Lam shall not be less than HK$590,000.

Dr. Antonio Maria Santos was appointed as the chief operations
officer of Advance Tactics Service Limited, a private company
incorporated in Hong Kong, which specialised in computer and
technology security, personal and corporate security, risk assessment
and management, and strategic advice on commercial laws as well as

the Listing Rules, since July 2013.

Mr. Kong To Yeung is an executive president of Express Investment
International Group Limited, which is a private investment holding
company located in Hong Kong, since January 2014. Before that he
was a general manager of G-Prop (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code:
286), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
September 2012 to December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at the AGM
has an unexpired service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

ERERNZEE

A% b AT H A58 13.51(B) (1) » IR AN F12013
AR R TR H R > R AR
mr -

HERBESGAE AN R R SL A A 20134F 11 A
14 H Z ek - H20134F6 A 13 H w4
T AF > O ZEU AR 4 2 ) 40 B oy (L 4 R 98
1T o 3 oA A HE U B 492,016,000 I 2 4 B #F
P F5 38 - 7 2 [ 48 B A A R 2.5% 2 AR FE A
41 o

MR AT A B A J FT S IR B Wh ik E 2013
613 H AL 5 W i AF - M 5 ZE AR 95 20 7 A
T oy (5 R R T S8R AT o b A A R LAY
1,800,000 7T 2 4F BE 3l i 28 - i b AR 8
FOALE M P 2 25T EEFAREm 2 4
FEACAT » e MEAT MR S A 2 4F BE 18 4T 4088 1% R
590,000 7T e

kIR 1 3 201347 H 8 A8 22 AT 5 4H e g
A BRA 7] (— A A s R Aoz 2 RN
F) 2 EE AR > W% W R S N R B AR
U~ BN BeA S5 A~ AR AT AL B B iR
FEIE DR B A IR At SR s e ek

VL 5 95 4 A 2014 4F 1 1 # ) AF Express
Investment International Group Limited (—
[ oz A A s 2 FA BB PR BN R ) 2 AT R -
TS Z T > B H20124F9 H £20134F 121 /3 &
B A 347 IR W) OB A%+ 286) (— ] I 52
P M T 2 AR 2 B AR

R B
TP PSSR R A O B B 23R AT 2 3 S M A LR

0N R RT SEAS N R AS AR TAR I Bt B (0 o B
EERAM) 1T AR 1E 2 o AR dd AR 5 4

Annual Report 2013 4E#. 25



Directors’ Report

HEHE N

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or are required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange are as follows:

(a)  Beneficial interests and long positions in the shares of the

Company at 31 December 2013:

Py~ A B B B AR R b 2 HE A
303

JA20134F12 H31H » AR E] 4 #H 3 R AT BUE K
AR ) AT A AR B 5 1 (O 26 R 5 B 1 %k
il (T 755 K W BB 1) SEXVER) Z ety ~ A BH
JR A5y 1 R RERE vh i AR 5 6 75 I A 15 10 191 27 352
A AR 5 SR B8 E i B B 8% 104K 51
2 T ) EE TR S A8 b W AR e s B (AR
MESE I 1) ZE 0 AR o \) S A8 I 2 RE A SR AT
oy

(@)  A20134E12A31H » AN RG22 &
M AT

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each (“Share(s)”)
BT ARL0.023 8 2 ¥ ik (T ey 1) 8 H

Personal Family Corporate Total
Directors interests interests interests interests
W (EPN & XK RE f 25 v BE £ HE 25 A8 5T
Mr. Tan Boon Seng 1,020,000 - - 1,020,000

W SCAE R
None of the Directors held any short position in the Shares.
(b)  Beneficial interests and short positions in underlying shares
of equity derivatives of the Company at 31 December 2013 are

disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” of this

Report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ASSETS AND/OR
ARRANGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2013, none of the Directors had any
other direct or indirect interest in any assets which have been acquired
or disposed of by or leased to any members of the Group, or were
proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of
the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no other contract or
arrangement subsisting in which a Director was materially interested
and which was significant in relation to the business of the Group as a

whole.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance in relation to the Group
business, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors (including INEDs) was interested in any
business apart from the Company’s business, which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s
business during the year.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed of “Share Option Schemes”, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2013 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND BB A ey~ H B ey R ERE R b2
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING WS RRA

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed below, at 31 December 2013, so far as is known to & N X2 4h > R20134F12 A31H » #i#
the Directors, no other person had, or was deemed or taken to have an 25 fif 1 > A% 4 At A 5 B 003 sl AR 28 ) A B A
interest or short position of 5% or more of the interests in the Shares or - F A7 B A 4 BB VR A 5% LA b 2 HE 2
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required IR A > MEMRIEE T LI EGAIHE 3360 A

to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO: kel VR
Number of Approximate %
underlying shares of of the total
equity derivatives issued Shares*
Shareholders Number of Shares AR AT H AL TR AT I A s > W40
JBE 3K B ¥ H Z KB S H H ket
Gustavo International Limited 203,150,000Note) - 6.86%
)
Maini Investments Limited 203,150,000Note) - 6.86%
)
VMS Investment Group Limited 704,770,045Note) - 23.81%
(“VMSIG”) (HtE)
R S A A )
([hIAEE )
Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola 704,770,045Note) - 23.81%
DI 4+ it
# Based on the total issued Shares of 2,959,452,260 at 31 December 2013. # MAE20134E12 A31 H A & FE 38 17 %

2,959,452,260 /%5t 5 o

Note: VMSIG and parties acting in concert with it are interested in an Mk : S I & & H — B 478 A LR &3t

aggregate of 704,770,045 Shares, of which 501,620,045 Shares are held 704,770,045 M Bt 0 o B A Bz o Ho
by VMSIG and 203,150,000 Shares are held by Gustavo International 501,620,045 A% A% £y B M W & A &
Limited (a company owned as to approximately 80% by Maini 203,150,000 /B i i3 fi Gustavo International
Investments Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of VMSIG which is in Limited (— H] i 5 I 4% & 2= & W} & 22 7] Maini
turn wholly-owned by Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola). Investments Limited % #180% 2 /A ] » 1fi

SRIRBEE R h 2D L LR R 5 A o

All interests in Shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of — JA A e A28 Al e A AT A T B 2 A B e 0y 2 Fo
the Company are long positions. None of the substantial Shareholders 41 H i ¥ /% 4 A o M4 = 22 1 AU A28 7] e f
held any short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of equity BN TR Z MBI B A 15 A AEATIRAT -

derivatives of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Under the share option schemes adopted by the Company on 30
May 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) and 28 May 2012 (the “2012 Scheme”)
respectively, options were granted to certain Directors, employees,
and other eligible participants of the Company entitling them to
subscribe for shares of HK$0.02 each in the capital of the Company.
The 2002 Scheme was expired and terminated on 27 May 2012.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may at their discretion grant
options to the following participants of the Company, its subsidiaries
and any company in which the Group holds any equity interest, to

subscribe for Shares in the Company:

1. eligible employees, including Directors; or
2. suppliers or customers; or
3. any person or entity that provides research, development or

other technological support; or

4. Shareholders; or

5. employees, partners or directors of any business partners, joint

venture partners, financial advisers and legal advisers.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial
Shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates,
shall be approved by the INEDs (excluding any INED who is a grantee
of the options).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the adoption date of the 2012 Scheme
without prior approval by the Shareholders.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the total issued share capital of the Company, without prior approval
by the Shareholders.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder of the Company or
an independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, under the 2012 Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company would result in the shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in any 12-month period in aggregate in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s issued share capital and with an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million must obtain prior approval from the
shareholders of the Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of
grant upon payment of HK$1.00 per each grant of options. The
exercise period of the options granted under the 2012 Scheme shall
be determined by the Board when such options are granted, provided
that such period shall not end later than 6 years from the date of grant.
The subscription price is determined by the Board and will not be
lower than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date
of grant, which must be a trading day, and (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the

date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of a Company’s share.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, no options were granted or

exercised.
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The following table discloses movement in outstanding share options, T F N # FE 2013412 31 H ILF 4 > RHE
which have been granted under the 2002 Scheme, for the year ended  20024F 7t #1| £ 4% H H i K A7 61 2 858 i 2

31 December 2013: ) -
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Outstanding at
1January 2012 during during Cancelled/ 31 December 2012 Exercise
Eligible person Date of grant 201241710 the year theyear  lapsed theyear 2012412310  Exercisable period price
AEBAL i 8 AL Epgi R RS/ KR WATTHE M f e
HK$
it
Continuous Contract 9 August 2007 180,000 - - (180,000) - 9 August 2007 to 02130
employees 20074£8J19H 8 August 2012
FERHAT 207F89R E
201248181
25 September 2007 120,000 - - (120,000) - 25 September 2007 to 0.1740
200749250 24 September 2013
2007925 HE
2013491241
300,000 - - (300,000) -

As at 31 December 2013, the number of shares in respect of which 2013412 H31H » A BMRIE20024F 5 847 &
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the 2002  {H ¥ 478 2 15 Jo iR B 2 BE Oy #0H B % (2012
Scheme was nil (2012: 300,000), representing approximately 0% (2012: 4= :300,000%) > {EAAFlH H 2 B 81T A%
approximately 0.01%) of the issued share capital of the Company at 0% (20124F : £)0.01%) °

that date.

Annual Report 2013 43, 3]



Directors’ Report

HEHE N

PUBLIC FLOAT

During the year ended 31 December 2013, based on information that
is publicly available to the Company, the Directors acknowledge that
more than 25% of the issued share capital of the Company is held by
the public.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not repurchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s securities.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws in Bermuda although there is no restriction against such rights

under the laws in Bermuda.
AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu was re-appointed as auditor of the Group (the “Auditor”)
to hold office until the conclusion of the AGM.

The consolidated financial statements for the year were audited by

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will retire at the AGM and
being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following connected
transaction is required to be disclosed in the annual report of the
Company:

Continuing Connected Transaction
Property Leasing

As disclosures in the circular and the announcement dated
22 November 2013 and 30 December 2013 in relation to, among others,
the disposal of the entire issued share capital of Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1L.)
Limited (the “Disposal”), one of the Company’s subsidiaries owns
the property located at workshops 01, 02, 03, 04, 05, 06 and 07 on the
28th Floor and the light goods vehicle parking space no. LGV-05 on
the podium level two of King Palace Plaza, No. 52A Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong (the “Property”). One of the
terms of the Disposal is that the Company shall, upon the completion
of the Disposal, procure that the property be leased to a member of
Wo Kee Hong (B.V.I.) Limited for a 12-month period commencing
30 December 2013 at a monthly rent of HK$170,000 (the “Rent”)
excluding management fee, rates, government rent, utility charges
and other outgoings (the “Lease”). The monthly rent was determined
after arm’s length negotiations between the parties with reference
to the prevailing market rent of the Property as determined by an
independent professional valuer. The annual cap of the Lease based
on the rental payable (excluding management fee, rates, government

rent, utility charges and other outgoings) is HK$2,040,000.

On 30 December 2013, the Group has entered into the tenancy
agreement with Wo Kee Administration Limited which is the
subsidiary of Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.) Limited based on the above terms.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has recognised
rental income of HK$11,000.

The Lease constitutes a continuing connected transaction of the
Company. As each of the Percentage Ratios (other than the profits
ratio) in respect of the Lease on an annual basis is less than 5%, the
Lease is subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but exempt from the independent shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in the Report in accordance with
Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38.

Confirmation of INEDs

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s INEDs

had reviewed the above connected transaction and have confirmed

that the transaction had been entered into by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii)  on normal commercial terms; and

(iii)  in accordance with the terms of the respective agreements
governing such transaction that was fair and reasonable and in

the interests of the shareholders as a whole.

A copy of the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chong Tin Lung Benny
Executive Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Report
e SR Ia

Maintaining an effective corporate governance framework is one
of the priorities of the Company. This includes informing our
shareholders of our corporate practices in our Report. In the opinion
of the Directors, the Company had complied with all the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2013, except Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7 of the CG
Code which are explained in the sub-sections headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” and “Effective Communication” respectively

below.

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board, sound internal control, and transparency and
accountability to all shareholders. The Board will continue to review
and improve the corporate practices of the Group from time to time to
ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board in order to optimise

return for the Shareholders.
THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as standard for dealings in securities of the Company
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, during
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the standards set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

We are governed by the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company. Our Directors are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing

and supervising the affairs of the Company.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises six members, of

whom three are Executive Directors and three are the INEDs.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny (appointed as Executive Director and
vice-chairman with effect from 13 June 2013 and re-designated
as Executive Chairman and appointed as Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 24 October 2013)

Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard (resigned with effect from 24 October 2013)

Mr. Lee Man Bun Jeff (resigned with effect from 25 June 2013)

Mr. Wong Tik Tung (resigned with effect from 30 December 2013)

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen

Mr. Lam Chi Yan (appointed with effect from 13 June 2013)

INEDs

Mr. Tan Boon Seng

Mr. Yin Pi Tak Peter (retired with effect from 30 May 2013)

Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan (retired with effect from 30 May 2013)

Dr. Antonio Maria Santos

Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie (appointed with effect from 21 June 2013)

The Listing Rules require every listed issuer to have INEDs who
represent at least one-third of the Board, at least one of whom must
have appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie, one
of the INEDs, is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Each INED is required to confirm
his independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules

annually.

Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard and Mr. Lee Man Bun Jeff are brothers, but
both resigned as Executive Directors with effect from 24 October
2013 and 25 June 2013 respectively. Save as disclosed herein, Board
members do not have any family, financial or business relations with

each other.

36  Auto Italia Holdings Limited 73 FIl % 5 A BR /A 7

WG ()

IR BN R E B A AW 2 AT

WATESR

HERBESEA (20136 H 13 H L HEZE (T 34T
e E R 0 F20134F10 H 24 H 59 4T
LABATF IR EFAT TR )

KR ( H20134F10 4 24 H & BT )
M AEE (201346 H 25 A # BFHLE)
R e (120134712 H 30 H #E BT )
TR

M (F20134F6 A 13 H AL HEZE(T)

BorJEMATE SR

Bl SCAE e

FW RS A ( H 201345 H 30 HAEZBAT)
RIS e (1 20134F5 H 30 H BT )
A e+

LB e (F120137F6 H 21 H AL VEZAT)

TR R SR L i AT AR 2 S R
TEEANBISERGRE A ABED =2 —>
Horh 2501 40 WO R A R A e A
BRSO B SERRE o Hoh — M ST AT
FIEG A B HEE G NG G B LBt
ARG A GERGH - WL IFEHTE
o AR R JR 0 R TR 5 3. 13 A it R L
e

2= SO T 2 SO e AR A A o MEAR SR A T
2013410 H 24 H % 201346 A 25 H BT #47
HH o RTHEE S ERE G A 2 W T
Al - A Bl ZETH AR o



Corporate Governance Report
e SR a0

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The biographies of our Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” in this Report. Details of the
biographies of the Directors seeking re-election at the AGM are set out
in the circular issued by the Company and sent to our Shareholders
together with this Report. The Company also maintains on its website
(www.autoitalia.com.hk) an updated biography of each Director. A
list of Directors and their roles and functions has also been published

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange respectively.

The Board meets regularly, normally four times each year at
approximately once every 3 months and additional meetings will be
arranged if and when necessary. Notice of each regular Board meeting
will be given to all Directors at least 14 days before the meeting.
Special Board meetings will be held as and when necessary. Matters
on transactions where Directors are considered having conflict of
interests or material interests will not be dealt with by way of written
resolutions and a separate Board meeting shall be held where INEDs
who have no material interests shall be present in the meeting. In
addition, Directors considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in the matters before the Board are required to declare their

interests and abstain from voting for the relevant resolution.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors for attending regular
Board meetings and other meetings. A package containing agenda and
all the relevant information is normally despatched to the Directors 3

days in advance of the relevant meetings.

Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person
or through electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors. The Company Secretary assists the Executive Chairman
in preparing the meeting agenda, and each Director may request
the inclusion of items in the agenda. Directors are also consulted on

matters to be included in the agenda for all regular Board meetings.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in detail and draft
minutes are circulated to all Directors for review and comment within
a reasonable time after the Board meetings are held. All the minutes
of the meetings are properly kept by the Company Secretary after
approved and are available for inspection following reasonable notice
by the Directors.

W ()

RO A R T S e SR
B —Hi o BN RORER g RS frE SR
VB JREFE AR O A S R TR A A ol B
A — I FETRE - ALNFIRRHER
(www.autoitalia.com.hk) b 3 A & % 25 )& JiE 2
o B R o 2 544 T B A (0 Rk RE AR 40 B
IR A AR ) T Wk 22 BT 4l

EHREE NG W EEH AR KEES3
ALK > i B A E R IR AT LI gk -
TEUCH B B R - SR B
TRl D 1I4R BN R R o HA L&
RN EFGGR - HEFWRBNLSF
JEA M) 45 8 28 R EER A48 > % IR g LA
] DR 5% 1 ZE R AT A R e R 0 E
8 oy v Sl A ORI 4 2 B S JF AT E
R % Bk o SO o EE R A R
i 2 JEUAT M) g 1 2% MR B R P 2 JE R
) i SO A ] R e S R R

A g E e ek A AT R
B RE N o 2R B B ek H I3 KA €
T O R AR T A M B R

& S on o Sl DN o R g Rk
T IR 2 B o 24w R R 1 B AT E T
R o T A S ) RO i el 0
FIANGERE - BT AEH G E MGk S - 5
GIERVIN g Gk -k SRl PN {0

EREG GRS o T R B 0 AR
PR g ek A AR < A B
FER - WRETR o A & ekl Bk AEHHER
2 F B 3 3 R A I SR S AT
R -

Annual Report 2013 4£#; 37



Corporate Governance Report
e SRR a0

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed

by the same individual.

The Company deviates from this provision because Dr. Lee Man
Fai Richard was the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company until he resigned from such positions of
the Company with effect from 24 October 2013. Subsequently, Mr.
Chong Tin Lung Benny, has been re-designated as the Executive
Chairman and was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company with effect from 24 October 2013. Mr. Chong has extensive
experience in corporate management and securities investments
and is responsible for the overall corporate strategies, planning and
business development of the Group. The Board considers that vesting
of two roles in the same person provides our Group with strong
and consistent leadership and facilitates the implementation and

execution of our Group’s business strategy.

The Company shall nevertheless review the structure from time to

time in light of the prevailing circumstances.
Appointments, re-election and removal of Directors

All INEDs, except Mr. Tan Boon Seng, are appointed for a specific
term of two years, subject to re-election in accordance with the Bye-

laws.

All Directors, including those appointed for a fixed term, are subject
to the retirement by rotation pursuant to the Bye-laws. A Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
shall hold office until the next general meeting. According to Code
Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every director should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Mr. Tan Boon Seng was re-appointed as an INED at last year’s annual
general meeting for a term up to the date of the AGM. Since he has
been an INED for more than nine years, his further appointment will
be subject to a separate resolution relating to be approved by our
Shareholders at the AGM pursuant to Code Provision A.4.3 of the CG
Code. The reasons that the Board believes he is still independent and
should be re-elected are stated in the circular sent to our Shareholders

together with this Report.
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DIRECTORS” CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction package
covering the statutory and regulatory obligation of a director of a
listed company. The Company continuously updates Directors the
latest developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to develop

and refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills.

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous professional
development. According to the records maintained by the Company,
the current Directors received the following training with an emphasis
on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in compliance with the requirement of the CG Code on continuous
professional development during the year ended 31 December 2013:-

R A R

40T A AR > AR B
AR EBREE R EERE L2 AR - AR
R A 1) 2 2 4 I AT B i AR B A B
BUE 2 e B MR DUAN A2 ) o S B 4 A DA
o o BT S ) RN A RE o

A O N R ST I SF R SCER AL6.5 1
AR SRR BT - REANRGFEZ
FLER o B A BRI TRE B R A R
ZHE > BUEE S A E 20134F12 H 31 H IE4FE
EHZUTEN > EEER FTAFAEREZ A
0~ BkAE KR - —

Type of training (Note)

Name of Directors HREA B NS (B )
Executive Directors: HiTHEF -
Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny HERFESEAE A
Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard ZESCHR I A B
Mr. Lee Man Bun Jeff ZEIM A B
Mr. Wong Tik Tung TR R S E B
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen BRIt B
Mr. Lam Chi Yan M A
INEDs: Hr FAATESF
Mr. Tan Boon Seng BRSO S A B
Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan R M e S A B
Mr. Yin Pi Tak FHE S B
Dr. Antonio Maria Santos 5 1 B
Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie VLA e A
Notes: BFGE -
A: Attending a briefing session on directors’ duties and responsibilities A :  AIEHBALH > HE MR EEEEALE

under laws and regulations conducted by legal professional when
newly appointed.

B: Reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory

requirements.

Fez fii & > AT e Sk it OB BUE T
ZHEIT R I

B: B WA o] T A ) A A 9 T B L R R

TRIRIO TS G b BT B R
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DIRECTORS” AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has also arranged appropriate insurance cover for
our Directors in respect of legal actions taken against Directors and
officers.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To ensure particular aspects or the Company’s affairs and to assist
in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has established
the following Board Committees namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Terms of
reference of each of these Committees are available on the Company’s
website at www.autoitalia.com.hk. All Committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and they are also
authorised to obtain external legal or other independent professional
advice if they consider it necessary to do so.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee comprise Mr. Tan Boon Seng,
Dr. Antonio Maria Santos and Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie, all of
whom are INEDs. Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee. Mr. Kong, being an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, has
the appropriate professional qualification and experience in financial
field. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are reviewed
annually and have included the duties set out in Code Provision
C.3.3(a) to (n) of the CG Code.

During the year, the Audit Committee conducted two formal meetings

and discharged its responsibilities.
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include to review the

financial reporting process and internal control systems of the Group

and to provide advices and comments to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

During the year of 2013, the Audit Committee had reviewed the audit
issues raised by the external Auditors; considered and recommended
to the Board for adoption of new accounting standards; reviewed and
recommended to the Board for approval of the audit fee proposal for
the Group for 2013; reviewed the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the years 2012 and 2013; reviewed the interim
report and the interim results announcement for the six months ended
30 June 2013; reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system of
the Group; reviewed and considered the report of the annual internal
control review of the Group; reviewed the related party transactions
and compliance of the relevant Listing Rules and accounting policies
in relation thereto; and reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee comprise Mr. Tan Boon
Seng, Dr. Antonio Maria Santos and Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie, all
of whom are the INEDs, and Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny, an Executive
Director. Mr. Tan Boon Seng is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
were adopted with reference to the CG Code, including the specific
duties set out in Code Provision B.1.2 (a) to (h).

During the year, the Remuneration Committee had conducted one

formal meeting.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
to determine the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management and adopted a set of policy and
guidelines to govern its administration in reviewing, considering
and fixing the remuneration packages and benefits of Directors
and senior management of the Group. During the year 2013, the
Remuneration Committee had fixed the schedule of INEDs’ fee; and
made recommendations to the Board in relation to the Director’s fee of
the new INED.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

Currently, the members of the Nomination Committee comprise Mr.
Chong Tin Lung Benny, one of Executive Directors, Mr. Tan Boon
Seng, Dr. Antonio Maria Santos and Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie, all
of whom are INEDs. Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. It is primarily responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of directors regarding
the qualifications and competency of the candidates. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are disclosed on the website

of the Company.

During the year, the Nomination Committee had conducted one

meeting.
Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the new code provisions of the CG Code relating to board
diversity which came into effect on 1 September 2013, the Board
approved a new board diversity policy in August 2013. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the needs of
the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience (professional or

otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES MEETINGS HEHEGRZEGGHR

RGN 2013 4F BT T8k o M8 B #H R
0BFERT 2 EHFERMEFLTHEGGRL

The Board met eight times in 2013. The attendances of individual
Director at these Board meetings and Board committees” meetings

held in 2013 are set out in the table below: R T %

Number of Number of Number of

Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Number of Committee Committee Committee

Board meetings meetings meeting meeting

attended/held  attended/held  attended/held  attended/held

HHE HHZEE FMzEEE RUZHE

RIE S GRBIE ERBME aEmbES

Name of Directors EHES BITRH BITRB BHRH BHRH

Executive Directors: HiTEF :

Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny ¢! HER RS ey 3/4 - 1/1 -

Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard e 2 S A ) 7/8 - - 1/1

Mr. Lee Man Bun Jeff ere3 M S ) 0/5 - - -

Mr. Wong Tik Tung ¥ TE o e o ate) 8/8 - - 1/1

Mr. William Keith Jacobsen BEHLE 7/8 - - -

Mr. Lam Chi Yan Mete5) Mi{{:%é(ﬁ/ﬁfﬂ 4/4 _ — —
INEDs: B FATESE

Mr. Tan Boon Seng B SE 0/8 0/2 1/1 0/1

Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan 9 SR I 5f A kel 3/3 1/1 - 1/1

Mr. Yin Pi Tak '8 FHB A A el 2/3 1/1 - 1/1

Dr. Antonio Maria Santos MRt 7/8 2/2 1/1 1/1

Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie 7 TL3E B S et 3/3 1/1 1/1 -

Notes: B -

1. Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny was appointed with effect from 13 June 2013 and HERFESEAE F120134F6 H 13 H L HEZEA(F - P
has been re-designated as Executive Chairman and was appointed as Chief 20134F10H 24 H T F 738017 E 05 R VEZE (F
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 24 October 2013. LA AL Al T -

2. Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard resigned with effect from 24 October 2013. ZE M E A 2013410 24 H #E T -

3. Mer. Lee Man Bun Jeff resigned with effect from 25 June 2013. 2SR F 201346 H 25 H # BHF -

4. Mr. Wong Tik Tung resigned with effect from 30 December 2013. TEMF A SEE F 20134F12 H 30 H A FHT -

5. Mr. Lam Chi Yan was appointed with effect from 13 June 2013. M54 F20134E6 13 H #FEZAT -

6. Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan and Mr. Yin Pi Tak Peter retired with effect from SR FE S A4 T T {85 A4 44 1 20134E5 H 30 H
30 May 2013. AL

7. Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie was appointed with effect from 21 June 2013. VLB 64 F120134F6 H 21 H L FEZ (T -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties as required under Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate

governance report.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial year, to ensure that these
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date and of the Group’s
results and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly
prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting
records, safeguarding of the assets of the Company and taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu was re-appointed as external Auditor. The statement of the
Auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
of the Group is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on

pages 51 to 52 of this Report.
During the year of 2013, the Auditor had performed audit and non-
audit services and their remuneration in respect of audit and non-

audit services is HK$1,785,000 and HK$345,000 respectively.

The non-audit services include the service in report of the disposal of
the Company’s non-car business in 2013.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management system, which is
designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement of management and financial information and

records or against financial losses or fraud.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group.
The Group has established and implemented the segregation of
duties and functions of the respective operational departments of
the Group; monitored the strategic plan and performance; designed
an effective accounting and information system; reviewed systems
and procedures to identify, measure, manage and control risks
including reputation, legal, credit, market and operational risks;
handled inside information by setting out the procedures and
policies; updated the internal control manual when there are changes
to business environment or regulatory guidelines; and followed
up with various departments to ensure timely implementation of
the recommendations and report the status to the management

periodically.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good
corporate governance practices and internal control system. An
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system was conducted. In respect of the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Directors were satisfied that the Group had operated an effective

internal control system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

The Company follows the practice that at the annual general meetings
of the Company, a separate resolution is proposed in respect of
each separate issue, including the re-election of Directors. In every
annual general meeting of the Company, the Chairman of the Board,
the chairmen of the Audit Committee, Directors and other senior
management of the Company will be present to answer questions
from the Shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Effective Communication (Continued)

In respect of Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, due to other
engagements, two INEDs were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2013; one INED was unable
to attend the special general meeting of the Company held on 11
December 2013; and two INEDs were unable to attend the special
general meeting of the Company held on 30 December 2013.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company
invited representatives of the Auditors to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company convened on 30 May 2013 to
answer Shareholders’ questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the Auditors” report, the accounting

policies and auditor independence.

The Company held three general meetings in 2013. The attendance of
individual Director at general meetings held in 2013 is set out in the
table below:

il J5% SRV T 0 (4)

H R (45)

AR IS AL6. 716 - HNA
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AR 201345 H 30 H 84T LR JH AR K& 5 14
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AN FR20134F 84T T3UMBR K & - A Hl
JR20134F BT 2 e AR 6 2t S0 T &

Number of general meetings attend/held

Name of Directors WHEH JBE SRR & i R BR AT
Executive Directors: AT EHE

Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny MotV HE R FE 4l A ity 2/2
Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard ™2 2 S ik - ) 0/1
Mr. Lee Man Bun Jeff Neted) 2SS0 My e A (i) 0/1
Mr. Wong Tik Tung Mete# TR BT 4 s 2/2
Mr. William Keith Jacobsen W H A 2/3
Mr. Lam Chi Yan ®te® A L i) 1/2
INEDs: W RIS -

Mr. Tan Boon Seng Bk ST A e A 1/3
Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan ¢ of% JE S 4 A (White) 1/1
Mr. Yin Pi Tak ®Nete®) FH{ff it 24 e (Wite) 0/1
Dr. Antonio Maria Santos FERE 1 2/3
Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie No? VL3 5 5 H (i) 1/2
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Effective communication (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Chong Tin Lung Benny was appointed with effect from 13 June 2013 and
has been re-designated as Executive Chairman and was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 24 October 2013.

2. Dr. Lee Man Fai Richard resigned with effect from 24 October 2013.

3. Mr. Lee Man Bun Jeff resigned with effect from 25 June 2013.

4. Mr. Wong Tik Tung resigned with effect from 30 December 2013.

5. Mer. Lam Chi Yan was appointed with effect from 13 June 2013.

6. Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan and Mr. Yin Pi Tak Peter retired with effect from
30 May 2013.

7. Mr. Kong To Yeung Frankie was appointed with effect from 21 June 2013.

Shareholders” Right

How Shareholders can convene a special general meeting (“SGM”)

and procedures for putting forward proposals at a general meeting?

Shareholders may make a requisition to the Board to convene a SGM
of the Company in accordance with the provisions as set out in the
Bye-laws and section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”). Shareholder(s) holding
at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company have the right to submit a written
requisition to the Board requiring a SGM to be called by the Board.
The written requisition must state the purpose(s) of the meeting
(including the resolutions to be considered at the meeting), and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda for attention of the Board and the Company Secretary of
the Company, and may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists. If the requisition does
not comply with the relevant requirements of the Bye-laws or the
Bermuda Companies Act, the requisitionists will be advised of the

same and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM, the requisitionists
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM
so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from
the said date of deposit of the requisition. A meeting convened by
the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as

possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by Board.

Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Companies Act allow certain
Shareholder(s) for a requisition the Company to give notice to
the Shareholders in respect of any resolution which is intended
to be moved at an annual general meeting of the Company and/
or to circulate a statement in respect of any proposed resolution or
business to be considered at general meeting of the Company. Under
section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act, at the expense of the
requisitionists unless the Company otherwise resolves, it shall be the
duty of the Company on the requisition in writing by such number of
Shareholders:-

(a) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next annual general meeting notice of any resolution which
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that

meeting;

(b) to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more than
one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that

meeting.

The number of Shareholders necessary to make the above-mentioned

requisitions to the Company shall be:—-

(i) either any number of Shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the

meeting to which the requisition relates; or

(ii)  not less than one hundred Shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Shareholders’ Right (Continued)

The Company shall not be bound to give notice of any resolution or to

circulate any statement as mentioned above unless:—

(a)  a copy of the requisition signed by the requisitionists, or two
or more copies which between them contain the signatures of
all the requisitionists, is deposited at the registered office of the
Company:—

i in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting;

and

ii. in the case of any other requisition, not less than one

week before the meeting; and

(b) there is deposited or tendered with the requisition a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expense in giving
effect to the requisition (i.e. the giving of notice of resolution
and/or circulation of statement).

Provided that if, after a copy of the requisition requiring notice of a
resolution has been deposited at the registered office of the Company,
an annual general meeting is called for a date six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within
the above-mentioned time shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to Tricor Standard Limited, the Company’s Share Registrar and
Transfer Office in Hong Kong. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can
be directed to the Company Secretary from time to time. Enquiring
Shareholder has to provide evidence to the Company to identify its
identity. Please refer to the section headed “Corporate Information” of

this Report for the contact details.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Constitutional Documents

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year of 2013.

Voting by Poll

The Company informed Shareholders of the procedures for
demanding a poll by incorporating them in any circular for an annual
general meeting and special general meetings, if any. In addition,
in every general meeting, the chairman of the meeting provided an
explanation of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll at the
meeting. The procedures for conducting a poll were incorporated in

the circular for the annual general meeting.
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Tik Tung resigned as the Company Secretary of the
Company with effect from 30 December 2013. Mr. Hon Ping Cho
Terence was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company
with effect from 30 December 2013, is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the
year ended 31 December 2013, he had taken no less than 15 hours of

relevant professional training.
All Directors had access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws,

rules and regulations, were followed.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chong Tin Lung Benny
Executive Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte.

R - XS SEET

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

BBZEBE88HR 35/F One Pacific Place
lﬁ ANEEH—EE352 88 Queensway
T,E\ Hong Kong
TO THE MEMBERS OF EEMEBRERA T
AUTO ITALIA HOLDINGS LIMITED £

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Auto
Italia Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 53 to 154,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

(R B FE R M7 2 AR ADD

RITEFREBEMERARAR (THAR ] K&
HCEHEE A ) (sl AR E ) #2538 154 H 2
LA MBS > P aiER20134£12H31HZ
AEEAEIRILE - UREEZ A ILEE 2 456
HEER - HFAHEGLHEMETER - A1
HHBR KSR ER > HFEKEHE
TR L S A fp R R o

EHA M B ERZ HIE

NG £ YIS iR AN R (T
A Y S5 ot B J) B Ak 0 R R 2 4 R R
WREEMA T2 558 B WE > WHTES
PR LB AR B AR S B IR L
A LA A7 AE TR YR E B ok i 4 B R G R
ik o

BB Z ¥ AR

AT ZHETIMBATZFE > H2EEGM
BrER B ER > WARE A AE A FEH0
P> M 2RBRKERTZER > BRI
Gh > AR A AR A R o AT A A
Hod WA AR H A N LR IER A AR
£ o AT TIRIE T G 5L G AT 2 BT
AP UEHIEAT B % T AR o %58 MR QI ZORAAT ST
R 0B AT AL > DA AR E AR
B B i R T AN A T A B K S R R

Annual Report 2013 48t~ 5]



Independent Auditor’s Report
38 0 B R o

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

25 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

O EmR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#2013 47 12 A 31 HURAFEE

2013 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E Tt T
(restated)
(FE51)
Continuing operations FERER
Revenue e A 8 1,182,788 1,190,230
Cost of sales B LA (989,973) (984,298)
Gross profit EH 192,815 205,932
Other income HoAtsise A 9 19,081 16,283
Other gains and losses At i i B e 1R 10 617 (2,815)
Selling and distribution costs 98 Ky 8 A (151,553) (137,061)
Administrative expenses ATECE (90,554) (82,166)
Finance costs PR A 11 (13,068) (15,604)
Loss before taxation [ i s 1 (42,662) (15,431)
Taxation HiTH 12 (2,437) (2,494)
Loss for the year from continuing B R AR S 2 AR e R
operations 18 (45,099) (17,925)
Discontinued operations B IR -7
Loss for the year from discontinued € [ B #¢ 1F 4845 357 2 A 4F 14 5 4
operations 41 (10,563) (64,314)
Loss for the year AAEE 1R (55,662) (82,239)
Loss for the year attributable to: JREAG A AF BE M 18
Owners of the Company N/NEIE ZE N
- from continuing operations — 3 H R R (36,916) (14,629)
— from discontinued operations — A H B A& IE AR SE S (11,126) (64,641)
Loss for the year attributable to AN FHEA NIEAL 2 A4 5 48
owners of the Company (48,042) (79,270)
Non-controlling interests I 2 IO it
- from continuing operations — K B R AR (8,183) (3,296)
— from discontinued operations — R B RE TS 563 327
Loss for the year attributable to T 2 RO i AL 2 AAF FE s 48
non-controlling interests (7,620) (2,969)
(55,662) (82,239)
T HETT
Loss per share attributable to the A2 w A N R AL 15 B e 4R
owners of the Company 15
From continuing and LREERT S 595
discontinued operations O #1288 2ES
— Basic and diluted — HEA T i (1.62) centsfill  (2.95) centsfill
From continuing operations R A R RS SERE
— Basic and diluted — R K (1.25) centsfill  (0.54) centsflll

Annual Report 2013 4F# 53



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

ok o 1 2 S LAt 2 v W B A

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 4% 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x TH#TT
(restated)
(%)
Loss for the year A 4E JE i 18 (55,662) (82,239)
Other comprehensive income (expense): HApth 2wt (B %) -
Items that may be subsequently reclassified HERES B ERELZ
to profit or loss: HH -
Reclassification adjustments relating to foreign FENA B BB ETZ
operations disposed of during the year FOHT S 2,865 T
Exchange differences arising on translation BB EBELEZ
of foreign operations fE 5, 72 48 (5,588) 1,706
(2,723) 1,706
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: AEESEERGZIHA -
Gain on property revaluation upon transfer to RS REYEE
investment properties LE R 15,620 T
Other comprehensive income for the year AR A A A T U A 12,897 1,706
Total comprehensive expense for the year AR A BE 22 H BH 2 AR (42,765) (80,533)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to: JRE A 2 i B S 48
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE DN (33,891) (77,429)
Non-controlling interests 1 P i (8,874) (3,104)
(42,765) (80,533)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EREN UL IS

At 31 December 2013
74 2013 4E 12 H 31 H

31 December 31 December 1 January
12H31H 12H31H 1H1H
2013 2012 2012
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i T#L T T
(restated) (restated)
(FE31) (FE%1)
Non-current assets Ik B
Property, plant and equipment ERY G 16 45,207 78,162 129,178
Investment properties BEY % 17 44,700 = 4,000
Goodwill [k 18 2,480 2,855 30,111
Intangible assets Y & 19 - 5,400 5,400
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 20 = 252 9,552
Rental deposits iEN=E & 10,531 7,539 6,042
Deferred tax assets IRACHIE & 30 - 194 118
102,918 94,402 184,401
Current assets it B
Inventories & 21 206,051 416,577 300,995
Properties held for sale e EY) % 22 & 30,070 30,070
Tax recoverables A [ A I 2,381 i "
Trade and other receivables &5 K EAh
JREUSUIR K p3 38,695 128,277 201,819
Loan receivables JRE WK 24 - 6,086 15,811
Pledged bank deposits E?&#ﬁfﬁ THFK 25 73,247 151,603 134,000
Bank balances and cash AT B R 4 25 269,387 85,780 71,755
589,761 818,393 754,450
Current liabilities B A E
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAh
JE A R K 26 311,777 382,260 406,272
Tax payable JRE BB IH 674 123 52
Amount due to a related company B4 — ] B 2
A 2 26,000 441 441
Bank and other borrowings AT M HAM 28 186,322 326,563 309,758
Obligations under finance leases Al A B s 29 149 302 148
524,922 709,689 716,671
Net current assets i B & A 64,839 108,704 37,779
Total assets less current liabilities 48 % 5 ik ifi B £ & 167,757 203,106 222,180
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI E

At 31 December 2013
42013 4F 12 H 31 H

31 December 31 December 1 January
12A31H 12A31H 1H1H
2013 2012 2012
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt T T T
(restated) (restated)
(H#31) (FE51)
Capital and reserves Jie AR K fif A
Share capital A Sl 59,189 59,189 49,178
Reserves G 89,677 123,568 138,131
Equity attributable to owners ZN/NGIE XN
of the Company JRE A HE 4 148,866 182,757 187,309
Non-controlling interests L I HE 4 8,718 8,080 11,184
Total equity HHEAR 157,584 190,837 198,493
Non-current liabilities 3 By 21
Bank and other borrowings SRAT B H A B 28 9,950 iV 5 233264
Obligations under finance leases Al A B 29 223 679 423
Deferred tax liabilities IESEBLIA A A7 30 - 13 13
10,173 12,269 23,687
167,757 203,106 222,180

The consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 154 were 532154 H 2 45 A M B R K E F k2014
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 43 H 25 H #tfE S 3 HE T 583 fhy T~ 51 & F AR R

March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: HEERE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
2 I
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

5t 5T 7

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#2013 47 12 A 31 HURAFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATHENE
Capital ~ Share Non-
Share  Share redemption  option Revauation Tranglaton  Other Accomilated controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  feserve  reserve losses Total ~ interests Total
RARBE R

B RBEE  BE RBRE EERE  ERRE  RRRE  RhER &b REREE o
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS000 HKSO0 HKS000 HKS000  HK§000  HKS'000
e Téx Tt T TEr T Tt T TR T T

At1 January 2012, asoriginellysteted ~ F0124F131H » MR R R A | 2 S (B BT (M) M9 2050 2008
Adjustments (note ) B 4 3 g g E L - M) 4 0N (154)
A1 January 2012, a tesated P0ELHIR - BE) LR L R A » S (B T (%) 18739 1184 198493
Loss for the year, as restated KERER ) - - - - 3 L v Y ' R )
Other comprehensive income

(expense) for the year AERERDATRE () - z a 2 L8 Kol : £ o Asd] (13 176

Total comprehensive income

(expenses) for the year KRG (L) 4% - - - - <ot SE] - ) (TS (I (805%)
Issue of new shares under

placement (note 31) RERERTHRE (31 98% 63932 - - - - - - T - T
Isstie of shares upon exercise of

share options (note 31) iR R R (i) g £ 10 = (27) g Y = gt B 1201 o
Transaction costs attributable to

isste o shares Bk EbaRE - (4 2 3 3 > 3 =4, AL -4
At31 December 2012, as restated R01F12A31R  BE 5189 1154678 2151 18 - 138 17034 (aehe) 180757 8080 190837
Loss for the year KERER - 3 3 3 3 - - (804 80 (e20)  (35662)
Other comprehensive income

(expense) for the year KEERBATIE () - - - - B (1469 - 41T (L 12807
Total comprehensive income

(expense) for the year KAERA TN () 4% - - £ - B0 (1469) - MY %) BT (W)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) dERE A (H40) - - - - - - - - 2 Bl )
Capital contribution from

non-controlling shareholders FERRRL g - - - - - - - - - 5880 5,880
Lapse of share options BRARER - - - 1) - - - 18 - - -
At31 December 2013 RNBEDA3NA By 15 ol S OBED () BB (00R0) 1% 878 175
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Ao Bl i

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

2013 2012
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt 5E FioL Tioo
(restated)
(E31)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEH)
Loss before taxation BRI 48 (52,918) (79,325)
Adjustments for: KEAEH DT AL
Impairment losses on trade and B by N HAb RE i
other receivables MRS E 18 12,641 9,260
Allowance for inventories ey 30,275 6,879
Depreciation of property, W - WE B
plant and equipment 23,728 22,699
Interest income FLE A (1,553) (1,428)
Interest expenses FE 16,380 20,837
Impairment losses on available-for- ATt A R (s 1R
sale investments - 9,300
Impairment loss on goodwill P B (E e 1R 308 27,256
Impairment losses on loan receivables R WA B S ek (s 1 = 8,104
Loss on disposal of properties R B e B E
held for sale 1,627 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEYISE - R K 2
plant and equipment & (505) (7,949)
Loss on disposal of investment HEREYE R
properties - 838
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries B E | 2 SR 40 532 -
Operating cash flows before A 4 S B
movements in working capital R BlEwE 30,515 16,471
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERD (38m) 106,147 (122,461)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 B LAt B K
other receivables (38 > (5,974) 64,664
Decrease in loan receivables JRE Wi I D = 1,621
Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5 T A JRE AT B 2
other payables (#2) 3,904 (24,765)
Net cash from (used in) operations gt (i) Bl 134,592 (64,470)
Income tax paid A I f A (4,558) (2,911)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) KB R Bl &g
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 130,034 (67,381)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREWGH
Interest received B RS 1,553 1,428
Purchase of property, WER Y - WS B st
plant and equipment (45,549) (25,138)
Proceeds from disposal of X a <7/ E S CE Qs
investment properties = 3,162
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYISE - WS K
plant and equipment 4% 3KH 16,545 62,175
Placement of pledged bank deposits A7 B HE A SR AT A7 2K (47,142) (103,336)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits ~ $2EC KA 8R1T 17 5Kk 63,247 85,733
Net cash from disposal of subsidiaries HH B B RS N FD B A VR AR 40 99,418 -
Proceeds from disposal of properties & R AR ) 6 BT A OR
held for sale 28,443 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING & 6 B P A B R A
ACTIVITIES 116,515 24,024
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HAaBERaR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
0 2013 4F 12 A 31 H L4

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THTT
(restated)
(FE )
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il T B
Interest paid 2AFE (16,369) (20,796)
Bank and other borrowings raised TS 2 SRAT S H A & 775,521 1,212,795
Repayment of bank and other borrowings — f& #4847 & H At {5 & (837,972) (1,188,701)
Repayment under finance leases & 7RG B A S (169) (221)
Interest paid on finance leases S ASF Rl A B R R (11) (41)
Proceeds from exercise of share options A0 4 T B HEE T A5 - 1,521
Proceeds from share placement J A T 65 Py 5 2K JE - 73,768
Shares issue expenses JEeAR 5547 BH 52 - (2,412)
Advance from a related party — 2 B N L BAGK 26,000 -
Repayment to a related party n] — 44 B B A - 2 3K (441) -
Capital contribution from FEFE BB oR
non-controlling shareholders 5,880 o
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM Al i % ) (i ) P 49 B 4 4
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (47,561) 75,913
NET INCREASE IN CASH B 4 B B 42 S50 18 H B i A
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 198,988 32,556
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AR Z B4 B B4 i IE H
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 72,927 39,939
Effect of exchange rate changes [ifE 3R 53 1) 2 B 28 (2,528) 432
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RAERZBERBEEHIER - 5
AT END OF THE YEAR, represented by 269,387 72,927
Bank balances and cash SRAT 45 Bk MO 4 269,387 85,780
Bank overdrafts SRATIE L = (12,853)
269,387 72,927
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

h‘/j‘

o B s Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

18

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company is disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section
of the annual report.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43.
During the year, the Group has disposed of certain subsidiaries
which are principally engaged in the import, distribution
and after-sales service of electrical appliances, distribution of
fashion apparels and accessories and motor yacht (“Non-car
Business”) and these operations are presented as discontinued
operations. Details of the disposal of subsidiaries and the
discontinued operations are set out in notes 40 and 41

respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fo i A B A B

For the year ended 31 December 2013

#E 2013 4F 12 A 31 HIE4ERE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKEFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKERS 10

HKEFRS 11

HKERS 12

HKEFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

Annual improvements to
HKEFRSs 2009-2011 cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities

Consolidated financial
statements, joint
arrangements and
disclosure of interests
in other entities:
Transition guidance

Consolidated financial
statements

Joint arrangements

Disclosure of interests in
other entities

Fair value measurement

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

Investments in associates and
joint ventures

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

Stripping costs in the
production phase of a

surface mine

JRE P 3BT 6T B A% 05 6T A W S 5 i o
SUJ (T 78 94 S 5 i o5 Y 1 D)

AR » AEBC 5B &S es
AN 8 (1B G AmA & ) BT 28
AT S ARG T A s A s et e )

THEB I ER] BB R
(EFT4) HEHI20094F £
20114F A =~
HERE MU
FHWBIREUER] BRI ER
798 (BFTA) A R3S
USSR A HERI S A5 MR
1095 - HWMGH  AETHE LB
HRAE RS BRHMER

WA ERIZE 2R R
1258 BT AR) 51

FUs ARG HER S 455 AT R R
10%%
U PR i E I
1158
FWYBHRAEUER] A AL R
#1258 T P R
FWWBREER AT EFE
1345
FWGFHERS19% 1§ 48 A
(20114F 48 1E7T)
FBEHENSE27Y W MR
(2011 4F-88AE7T)

aEL

FWETHERI28SE NBE AR &G
(2011 4F 48 165T) ERNRZRE

WG FHERS 19T HAab 2w s IE
CCHES) H 15135

Fik (B BB BRI =
REZAE) B SRR B AR
— R 2097
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR A R R P B E

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Excepted as disclosed below, the application of the other new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; the fair
value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both
financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except for share based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes
of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment
assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13
includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKEFRS 13 requires prospective application. In addition,
specific transitional provisions were given to entities such that
they need not apply the disclosure requirements set out in the
Standard in comparative information provided for periods
before the initial application of the Standard. In accordance
with these transitional provisions, the Group has not made
any new disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012
comparative period. Other than the additional disclosures,
the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S A TR P BE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
0 2013 4F 12 A 31 H L4

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”. The
amendments introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, the ‘statement of comprehensive
income’ is renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income” and the ‘income statement’ is
renamed as the ‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments
to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that
items of other comprehensive income are grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is
required to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do
not change the option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have
been applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation
of items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss, other

comprehensive income and total comprehensive income.

FEE i 5T B #8055 6T Ay ol S 85 i i
SUJ (T 78 9 S 5 e o Y 1 D) ()

A &t SR 198 (I8 5T AC) Hofth 2
i W 5 S H Y 510 i

AL R T A v o wh R RS 1 5% (B RT
) T HAt 2 T Ui 2 TH H 8951 o sZ BT
A A TR i R B W e R 5 L AK A o
WA e st E Q219 (BRTA) > [ &
T Wi i 3 B 44 2 [ 4B A B A 2 T i 4
KoM TR ELL THumR] - F
e EH R 19E (BT A) IR B EER
— 3 S ¥ R B 1 S R A ok
2SI H i X H AL R E YA o R
e a e RS 198 (B AT A) ZORAE HAt
i TH] WA A — B A EL At e T 45 T H O3
R QHESAGEN OB ERG
MIEHE 5 K(b) H AR TEAF & i 5E ok A i vl
HHOMBERGEE o HAb 2w ik i
TE H B P A3 B E L A R S e o A B
1B w1 3lf 48 o4 5 2 97 BR B i B PR B AR Ho Atk
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TR B AT LA S S Bl - PR B2l 2 51 R
Boh > HEMA G FHERIE 19 (R4
B - HoAh T AR K 4 T W4 AR
AN AT A 5 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR A R R P B E

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS
10 “Consolidated financial statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint
arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other
entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate financial
statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) “Investments in
associates and joint ventures”, together with the amendments
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding transitional
guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as
it deals only with separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation —
Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor has control over an investee when
a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
¢) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three
of these criteria must be met for an investor to have control
over an investee. Previously, control was defined as the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has
been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has
control over an investee. HKFRS 10 contains detailed guidance
regarding whether or not an investor that owns less than 50% of
the voting rights in an investee has control over the investee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S A TR P BE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
0 2013 4F 12 A 31 H L4

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10 (Continued)

Specifically, the Group has a 49.8% ownership interest in
China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. (“CPLY”) which has
a wholly owned subsidiary CPMM (Asia) Limited (“CPMM”).
CPLY is listed on OTC Bulletin Board in the United States of
America. The Group’s 49.8% ownership interest in CPLY gives
the Group the same percentage of the voting rights in CPLY.
The Group’s 49.8% ownership interest in CPLY was acquired
in July 2006 under a group reorganisation and there has been
no change in the Group’s ownership in CPLY since then. The
remaining 50.2% of the ordinary shares of CPLY are owned by
two individuals each holding not more than 15% and over 40
shareholders, none individually holding more than 6%.

The directors of the Company made an assessment as at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 10 (i.e. 1 January 2013) as to
whether or not the Group has control over CPLY in accordance
with the new definition of control and the related guidance set
out in HKFRS 10. The directors of the Company concluded that
it has had control over CPLY since the acquisition in July 2006
on the basis of the Group’s absolute size of holding in CPLY
and the relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings
owned by the other shareholders. Therefore, in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 10, CPLY, together with its
subsidiary, CPMM, have been subsidiaries of the Company
since July 2006. Previously, CPLY was treated as an associate
of the Group and accounted for using the equity method of

accounting.

Comparative amounts for 2012 and the related amounts as
at 1 January 2012 have been restated in accordance with the
relevant transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 10 (see the
tables below for details).

FEE i 5T B #8055 6T Ay ol S 85 i i
SUJ (T 78 9 S 5 e o Y 1 D) ()

Wil B BEAEET &5 6 ~ R L HE - B
B v Bt g g e (4

JE JTI 2 vt i B B R 10 5E 19 7 BE

(#8)

H# W 5 » A% @it China Premium
Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. ([CPLY |)#E
F49.8% 2 fw » HfEA — 2 &M EA
A 44 i (FE ) A BRA A ([CPMM )
CPLY i 3 FIl B & 5 B 35 41 32 5k 1B A
T e AL HEA CPLY 49.8% 2 ff 4
4T A SE B R CPLY A MR Lo 4 2 %
S o AR A CPLY 49.8% 2 M £ it
200647 H AL M EAH F i > A A
L ERCPLY 2 M 25 MF #E 58 8) - CPLY H:
#2502% 2 EEBHEMA L AL
R 15% M HE 2 BN > Bidi40 45 N HE Bt
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43 @ CPMME H 200647 H 5 £ A2
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKEFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements

(please see note 44 for details).

Summary of the effects of the above changes in
accounting policy

In accordance with the transitional provisions under HKFRS
10, the effects of changes in accounting policy described above
on the results for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as
follows:

Impact on loss for the year of the application of HKFRS 10

JRE FHI 3BT w0 B 405 Y A W B 5 i o
SUJ (T 78 9 S 5 i o Y S D) ()

WAl B ARAE T AR A ~ JE PR - BB
B4 v B i g g e (4

JE T 2 5 B 55 R P R 2 1 250 1 5 B

T b S i e ) 5 12 B — JE T R e
> BARERB AR - AETHE - B
BT R SRS A R A A
MR - TS - & s BB RS e A
BREENGEMBERERAEHEL S
T 1) 3 % (RETE w5 2 B B E44) o

ot et BOR 52 B 2 R B
AR 7 s o 0 oV U5 10 9 0 9 Ak

o bl e UK A AL 20124F 12
H31H I EFLEAT ¢

T 7 38 B 5 R PR A 10 E 2 2 4R
7 1R 1Y B

Year ended
31 December

2012
#E 20124
12/ 31H IL4E %
HK$’000
T#IT
Increase in administration expenses and AT IR ) B A A fls 8
loss for the year (1,602)
Increase in loss for the year from continuing JRRE A A 4 JBE A A A S s AR B
operations attributable to:
Owners of the Company E/NGIE7 2SN (798)
Non-controlling interests I P A 2 (804)
(1,602)
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) APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. FE FH BT T B 845 5T 7 v B 0 il o 4
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B (T BB HREEA]) ()
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in biltent BUORSE B 2 BB ()
accounting policy (Continued)

As at As at
1 January Asat 31 December As at
2012 1January 2012 31 December
(originally ~ HKFRS 10 2012 (originally ~ HKFRS 10 2012
stated)  adjustments (restated) stated)  adjustments (restated)

R T S

20126 IS0 20125 20126 HERISE03E 20124
TALH (K1) W% 1A1H (E5) 128310 (K51 W8 12310 (E51)

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Fibn T T Tt Tk Tt

Trade and other receivables & % JHAh RENT iR 201,818 1 201,819 128,275 2 128,277
Amounts due from associates MES &/ 73R 66,311 (66,311) .2 71,480 (71,480) z
Bank balances and cash ~ RATHitR R4 71,754 1 71,755 85,780 - 85,780
Trade and other payables & 5 R H il i 3¢ (401,041) (5,231) (406,272) (380,596) (1,664) (382,260)
Total effects on net assets & 1 (41 3 & (61,158) (71,540) (132,698) (95,061) (73,142) (168,203)
Accumulated losses 2R (11,242) (62,144) (73,386) (89,714) (62,942) (152,656)
Non-controlling interests ~ FF S 20,580 (9,396) 11,184 18,280 (10,200) 8,080
Total effects onequity ~ #ffz A% 9,338 (71,540) (62,202) (71,434) (73142 (144576)
Impact on cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2012: B E2012F12 31 HIEFEH SR R w2
HKFRS 10
adjustments
v B s
HE JISE 1055 0 B
HK$’000
TH#s T
Increase in net cash inflow from investing activities % & iif ) 31 4 i A BRI N 58169
Decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities #8751 B B 4 Ji A 15 A (5,170)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Summary of the effects of the above changes in

accounting policy (Continued)

Impact on basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and

discontinued operations

JRE FHI 3BT w0 B 405 Y A W B 5 i o
SUJ (T 78 9 0 5 e o Y UL D) ()

3 S BOR S B B (4)

B [ IFARCE R E AL R KT 2 15
JRFEAR R 7 15 2 7 2

Year ended
31 December
2012
#F2012
4#12H31H
AR B

HK cents

A

Figure before adjustments
Adjustments from the impact of HKFRS10

AR i (2.92)
A U 5 s R R 2B 1098 R 2R 2 A (0.03)

Figure after adjustments

T

BHREE (2.95)

Impact on basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations — 3f 5K [ fF 45 A8 & 2E 75 2 45 IR FE A I #8176 f7 16 2

=7
2 %@

Year ended

31 December
2012
BE20124
12H31H L4
HK cents

A

Figure before adjustments
Adjustments from the impact of HKFRS10

LR V&2 (0.51)
H A s A5 HE R SR 1098 g 28 2 i 3 (0.03)

Figure after adjustments

IR B (0.54)

In the current year, the Group has also early applied the  jAAAER > A% H 8 FERT L B &S € SR
amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for 453648 (1857 4%) I 4 Rl & 728 22 Al Wi 1] 4 a5 5% -

Non-Financial Assets in advance of its effective date.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The Group has early adopted the amendments to HKAS 36 in
advance of its effective date, 1 January 2014. The amendments
to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable
amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill or
other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had been
allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal of
impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair
value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques
used when the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU was
determined based on its fair value less costs of disposal.

The application of HKAS 36 amendments has no impact to the
financial position and performance of the Group.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKEFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities!
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions?

Mandatory effective date of
HKEFERS 9 and transition
disclosures®

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities!

Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge
accounting?

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle*

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 39

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to

HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?®
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts®
HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies!

FEE i 5T B #8055 6T Ay ol S 85 i i
SUJ (T 78 9 1 5 e 5 Y S D) ()

A G S IS 36 3R (15T &) JE &
il 2 T MR I < A R

AL 2R i ET HE I B 36 5% (15T
) A H #2014 41 A 1 H A7 1R 7T %
W oo HilaHENISE369E (BFT4S) Bk
AT s B AR e 2
HM T & IR 4 E AR A ([ EE
AR BN | ) SO A (L (L T I B R A
B HR 4 7 A BN 2 ] i ] 4 B B AE -
AL > A —JE G E a4 A B TR
N TAE W B A i > BRI A ZE
MATVESER - BEFH 2 FEERGE A
(BT IE P FERINE R

JE R 7 s R R R B 36 5% (B 7T A) i A
B R SR I 5SRO B R B A U 2

38 A5 1H 1w R A 2804 8 T B 8 4 6T
i B 5 e o e S

A 4 0 A L AR A (L
P T T S A T WS B R e

MRS REEE
95 BB R
1295 RA U R
$075% (BFTA)

FHeaHENE195 FEEARE A
(BT A&) e

T 1 IR 0 A 1 SO 8 S 7 s B S 559
Bk B ST SRR R R
VAUTES) Tt P i

T EFHENERE SREEMSEAREY
(BETA) TS
B ETHENEE395 AR LE AR R
(E3TA) ErEtho
B T i e I #2010
(B7IA) AR D0124F M 2 4F
Ji Pt
T v B A e ) BV BB R 12011
HES) 20134 F 1 1 2 4F
i B2

FRMBWEEARI SMTH
T B RS 45E B RIEIR B
Fits (BFRRA S R &
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

Available for application — the mandatory effective date
will be determined when the outstanding phases of
HKERS 9 are finalised

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions

X Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements

beginning on or after 1 January 2016

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the above
new and revised HKFRSs will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one

or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are

sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;
] rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous

shareholders’ meetings.

3
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance from 1 January
2010.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation and realised
to profit or loss when the relevant members of the Group are
disposed of.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified /permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated

customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

] the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
] the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period

in which they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be

transferred directly to accumulated losses.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and building held for administrative purposes are stated in
the consolidated financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful

lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
Properties under held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for sales of such asset and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a

completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less

costs of disposal.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units), that is expected to benefit from the synergies

of the acquisition.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the

amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
or specific identification method as appropriate. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make

the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect of

impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is

derecognised.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-

controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘accounting result before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because it excludes income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be

recovered entirely through sale.
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready

for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease

obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general

policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy above).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in

which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and the

building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,

plant and equipment.
Retirement benefits schemes

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them

to the contributions.

82  Auto Italia Holdings Limited 77 1| ¥ i 4 R /A 7]

3.

EEEFBOR ()

PSS ()

IE AN (%)

T S A A B T LUE S B > &
SHEE GRS A o MR R L
B AR AR S A B SN - e A
FA AP0 A M O [ P R U R AR
L 2 KEP a1 B FERR Ob -

THE -1 T

i FHL B35 & AR M AR EIAR
A5 RT A 2% BT 4 2 B8 DR AR T B B ] k2
B OB EAEE > LA A8 S
FA T il SR AR o e i R AT
Y e S A AL R AR AR R 0T
HEEEME - Bl S - REHEHE
(16 A AT — UM T 30 B 31 4
B i 2 B > LA FCAR B 7E B 46 IRy
A B A AR T A B SR AR
SE LB B o

L SOSAR 1E H JH 2 ]
GO Z T - 2RO UK
U BV S ESUR A - BRI R
el -

I8 PR A Gt
FAE B 2 AR ARAR At ) B o R et

ZATFORE B4R MRS T AR = A
FRRFHE R BH S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S A TR P BE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
0 2013 4F 12 A 31 H L4

8t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying
specified vesting conditions, the fair value of services received
is determined by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in

equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a

corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable

and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an

indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a

group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as

appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, loan receivables,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment (see accounting policy on impairment of

financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of

interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in

respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).
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8t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables and loan receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on receivables.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date of the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and loan receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade and other receivable or loan receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at cost on equity investments, the
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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8t

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount
due to a related company and bank and other borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to

the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Control over CPLY

Note 2 describes that CPLY and its subsidiary, CPMM, are
subsidiaries of the Group although the Group has only 49.8%
ownership interest and voting rights in these subsidiaries.
CPLY is listed on OTC Bulletin Board in the United States of
America. The Group’s 49.8% ownership interest in CPLY was
acquired in July 2006 under a group reorganisation and the
remaining 50.2% of the ordinary shares of CPLY are owned by
two individuals each holding not more than 15% and over 40
shareholders, none individually holding more than 6%.

The directors assessed whether or not the Group has control
over CPLY based on whether the Group has the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of CPLY unilaterally. In making
their judgement, the directors considered the Group’s absolute
size of holding in CPLY and the relative size of and dispersion
of the shareholdings owned by the other shareholders. After
assessment, the directors concluded that the Group has
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant
activities of CPLY and therefore the Group has control over
CIRLYG

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets,
after taking into account their estimated residual value, if any.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expenses to be recorded during the periods. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets taking into account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation expenses for future periods are adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous estimates. At
31 December 2013, the carrying value of property, plant and
equipment is HK$45,207,000 (2012: HK$78,162,000).

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at the
end of the reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for use in production or sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods based
primarily on the latest selling and purchase prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for slowing-moving inventory. If
the market condition was to deteriorate, resulting in a lower net
realisable value for such finished goods, additional allowances
may be required. At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of
inventories is HK$206,051,000 (2012: HK$416,577,000), whereas
the allowance for inventories recognised during the year ended
31 December 2013 is HK$30,275,000 (2012: HK$6,879,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

When there is objective evidence that trade and other
receivables and loans receivables may be impaired, the Group
estimates the future cash flows of those balances. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial assets” original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
on initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. At
31 December 2013, the carrying amount of trade and other
receivables and loan receivables were HK$38,695,000 (2012:
HK$128,277,000, as restated) and nil (2012: HK$6,086,000)
respectively, whereas allowance for bad and doubtful debts
recognised on trade and other receivables and loan receivables
during the years ended 31 December 2013 is HK$12,641,000
(2012: HK$9,260,000) and nil (2012: HK$8,104,000) respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amount due to a related company, obligations under
finance leases and bank and other borrowings, net with cash
and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. The
directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. sRMILH
Categories of financial instruments il T H 5 8
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
(restated)
(FE5)
Financial assets LA
Available-for-sale investments AL AR = 252
Loans and receivables (including B B BB WSO K (L 456 B4 I
cash and cash equivalents) HE%ZHEEH) 358,830 323,438
Financial liabilities <l £
Amortised cost B B AR 312,471 639,526
Financial risk management objectives and policies 4 i R B 4 B H B R BUSR

The Group’s financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, loan receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances, trade and other
payables, amount due to a related company, obligations under
finance leases and bank and other borrowings. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on

a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The group entities collect most of the revenue and incur most
of the expenditures in their respective functional currencies

except for certain inter-company balances and bank deposits/

balances denominated in foreign currencies.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SBTHM
Financial risk management objectives and policies <i i B B 4 B H OB B BUSR (4
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) T 55 JRU B (4
Currency risk (Continued) I B (4E)
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency A 45 [ H AT A0 M BOR - SR
hedging policy. However, the management of the Company /NS LN R N 1 A
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging 2 I 25 i o B R A U
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign currency AR A R R E R RLANEESIE 2
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the WEE kAR IREENT
reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
& & fufi
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$"000
Ti#ou Tt Tt T
United States Dollars (“USD”) ¢ 41,939 48,438 4,590 45,189
Renminbi (“RMB”) NG 36,450 36,548 = =
Euro (“EUR”) BT 1,889 7,764 2,960 3,690
Singapore Dollar (“SGD”) SN W - = - 4,185
Thai Baht (“THB") %ok = A i 17,850
Sensitivity analysis HRE 73T

As HK$ is pledged to USD, the Group does not expect
any significant foreign currency exposure arising from the
fluctuation of the HK$/USD exchange rates. As a result, the
directors consider that the sensitivity of the Group’s exposure
towards the change in foreign exchange rates between HK$/

USD is minimal.

P T B S T e - AR T A '
R ¥4 T 5, 5% TC < B 56 3¢ ) T 7 A A Ao 2
KA Ja B o RIIE - 2 SRR A A A 1 3
T T 5 5% T 2 B AR ) . UK R A
& -

Annual Report 2013 4E# 95



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR A R R P B E

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. Sxih T H (4)
Financial risk management objectives and policies < ol JmL g 4 B )RR % RO (41)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) T 35 IR ()
Currency risk (Continued) B (4)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) TR T (4
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% ™ K FE S R RE A 4L B A o s AR
(2012: 5%) increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB, EUR, W~ RGBSR R AR SR RE R R I
SGD and THB. 5% (2012: 5%) represents management’s 5% (20124F : 5%) Z HURE © 5% (2012
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign At 5%) 15 B HLE B E R T e A M )
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s ZRTAL o AR H R A B R 2 AR B
exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting 2R Ay M T R R B O [ 0 B
period has been determined based on the change taking place 55 ) 1 o I A R R A R AE R
at the beginning of the financial period and held constant B o ZAE [H] i i HA SR 22 AN JE B 2 B
throughout the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis of B HT I E S R G BN R EZ B
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the TH H 5B A B 4585 o
reporting period include only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and inter-company balances.
A positive number below indicates an increase in post-tax loss THIEH R R AR ~ Bot ~
for the current year where a 5% (2012: 5%) strengthening of T W Ko 2% Sk HY R S ST B8 5% (20124F -
HKS$ against RMB, EUR, SGD and THB. For a 5% (2012: 5%) 5%) > DABUASAE P A R o fin
weakening of HK$ against RMB, EUR, SGD and THB, there T b A RS~ BROT - TN bk e R R Bk
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss for tljfﬁy%;wﬁzé’%gyo 20124F :5%) > e
the year as set out below: AR F’%ﬁﬁfﬁl&ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁi? B HH S5 KA I
2R
RMB impact EUR impact SGD impact THB impact
AR BE B R i s W 2 REBE
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000
T T T T#TT T T T T
Increase (decrease) R % RIS A
in post-taxloss (/> 7,435 1,526 (45) 170 - (175) - (745)

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
period end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
reporting period.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to loan receivables, pledged bank deposits and obligations
under finance leases. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
relates primarily to variable-rate bank balances, bank and
other borrowings (see note 25 for details of the bank balances
and note 28 for details of bank and other borrowings). The
Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary actions when significant interest

rate exposure is anticipated.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the end of the reporting period. For variable-rate bank balances
and bank borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the bank balances and bank borrowings outstanding at the
end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 10 basis points increase or decrease in variable-rate
bank balances represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates. If interest rate
decreases/increases by the aforesaid basis point, and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year ended 31 December 2013 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$280,000 (2012: HK$227,000). A 50 basis
points increase or decrease in variable-rate bank borrowings
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest rate increases/
decreases by the aforesaid basis point, and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2013 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$787,000 (2012: HK$1,371,000).

Sl TH (4)

<6 il L B A BE H B R BOSR (4

T 455 Ja\ B (47)
VI

A AR B 2 S (E A S T By T B R
;o DI A LM EHEEEA
B o A 4R ) 2 B < P S By o 2 B
BRITEER - BT R HARE B (SRATEIER
ZEI W 2 B B R 25 B SR AT B A £ £
ZREERE 2 B E28) A B o AR MBI
fr 41 1) A2 3 b BOSKE o SR - A LR B
) 25 Jl g S 5t 7 Y 40 T B R ) R e e
5% At T/ AT 8 -

BRI

DL SRR A3 A T AR SR SR R 2 JE
A L H 2 ) 3 m i o s iE B AR
TSR R ARAT IR 5 > Z i Tk
AR R AT AR AE R 22 SRAT 45 8 S BT
PR R R A AP R A R o V7 BRI A
iR A ) 1017 2 B 0 3 W0 > R/ORE
JH I B 2R 0] B R B 2 A B A 1Y) R
i o A R4E AR BN T, H
F A Ffh s A RN B o RIREREEE
20134512 A 31 H 1E 4 J& 2 B Bi 1% s 18
316 84 I3 /D #1280,000# TT (20124F
227,000%575) o V7 B8R AT 1E A 501
BB B0 B - R A SR B R ]
Al th B 2 A B B 1 SR AL o R SRR b
ARy T B BT A At g A
FeR & > JI) A 4 [ A 2 2013412 A 31
H IE 4R B 2 BR B4R s 1519 38 I &9
787,000%5 7T (20124F : 1,371,000% %) ©
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
period end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the

reporting period.
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, and bank balances and
pledged bank deposits for year ended 31 December 2013 and
2012.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade and other receivables consist of a large number of
customers spread over diverse geographical areas, thus the
Group does not have significant concentration on credit risk.

Bank balances and pledged bank deposits are placed in various
banks and the Group has limited exposure to any single
financial institution. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited

because the counterparties are banks with good reputation.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had significant
concentration of credit risk on loan receivables. In order to
minimise credit risk, management had delegated a team to
be responsible for the determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
management reviewed the recoverable amount of each loan
receivable at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses was recognised for irrecoverable
debts. The impairment losses recognised in respect of loan
receivables during the year ended 31 December 2012 was
HK$8,104,000. The management closely monitored the
subsequent settlement of the individual loan and did not grant
long credit period to the counterparties. Also, management
might request for collaterals in order to minimise the
exposure of credit risk due to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties. In this regard, the directors considered that the
Group’s credit risk was significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management of the Company monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
maturity dates for financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

Sl TH (4)

<6 il L B A BE H B R BOSR (4

fis BERLBR (A7)

A20124F12 A 31 H A 4 F] 2 JE Ui £ 5K
[N S R = e A X =R =g
i Ak > R RIR— (K A&
Tl FT 5 R AR - (5 R A B L A B
T o BLAh o B HLRE A TR R At
5 TE B 3 2 FT i I] 4 %E > DARECR A
ST Wi [ S e R A (B RS R - B
20124F12 H31 H IR 4B > w M i & e
5B 2 W E 5 18 5 8,104,000 # oG o 45 HE
& %% Y] B 5 A Al A R 2 AR A 3k LN d
¥y R A SRR o bAoA
B G n] e B R A G DR R R
HE B AT AT 11 1 2 A R o st
T BRRAALEENG SRR D KE
FEAI -

Ui B R B

HUE BB VR R o AN SR A
MER— K TF2 Bl kBl e%HEEE
DASCE B RG 58 70 2 DB AT A 42 [ 7 Nl
BARB S RN B 2 8 - AN EH
JEEERATEEZER - DR &8

T R A A B ] A T R i KA Ot R
MEEMARZBRTEHEMEL - Z
TR A G I AT B SRR R i LA
K H TRk R AR OR G BB i B
R o GRA BB YRR e R
AHGH -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. Sxih T H (4)
Financial risk management objectives and policies <o i J\ B 4 B AR R BUR (4%
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) it B P L i (4
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To FZRAENEEAGHEHE - RALE
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted W AR ZBTR N o R BB RIE
amount is derived from contracted interest rate at the end of TIURE IR G AR ST -

the reporting period.

Weighted Less than Total Total

average 1year or 1to5 Over5 undiscounted carrying

interestrate  on demand years years  cash flows amount
FHBIB &

IMBEFSRR ERRIEER 1554 54U L il A i A fE
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T

As at 31 December 2013 }2013412H31H
Non-derivative financial ~ FEfij4 2R A &

liabilities
Trade and other payables &5 K ELM (TR 3 89,827 = = 89,827 89,827
Amount due to arelated ~ FEff—[H B A Al
company I - 26,000 - - 26,000 26,000
Bank and other borrowings 7 R FLA fE £ 5.24% 190,368 7,305 3,196 200,869 196,272
Obligations under R
finance leases 1.86% 160 240 - 400 372
306,355 7,545 3,196 317,096 312,471
As at 31 December 2012 R2012412H31H
(restated) (E5)
Non-derivative AT SRA R
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 5 R FLfh e B3k - 299,964 - - 299,964 299,964
Amount due to arelated  FEAf— B A A
company PH - 441 - - 441 441
Bank and other borrowings 47 K HA ft 4.60% 341,330 7,335 5,038 353,703 338,140
Obligations under B EHEH
finance leases 4.88% 340 720 22 1,082 981
642,075 8,055 5,060 655,190 639,526
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.
Fair value

The fair values of financial assets (excluding available-for-
sale investments) and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair

values.
SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the operating and reportable segments of
“electrical appliances”, “fashion apparels and accessories”,
“others” were discontinued. The segment information reported
below does not include any amounts for these discontinued

operations, which is described in more details in note 41.

Accordingly, the information reported to the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM”), being the executive directors of
the Company, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance, focuses on the remaining
operating and reportable segment of “Cars”, which represented
trading of cars and related accessories and provision of car

repairing services.

Sl TH (4)

<6 il L B A BE H B R BOSR (4

i By R B (A7)

{7 0 ) 50 0 2 2
Rt B - 3EA R AT S
A2 8 TR S R -

AP

SEMEE (AEFEIMHERE) ke
BEZ ATETIAR A 38 5E R 5
P Ul B B 4 L B 0 AT T R o

TE o R0 A A S kR A B AR ) R
S T T I < R AR T L B 0O
{EARAT -

5 FE K

N [ - TR S mee |~ [ HAb
ZRBERAHESFEKIL o DN
S RUE R AN ELIE %5 O A 1L KRR TS
ZAEAT &R > SR RR B 4L o
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7

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

7.  BEERE)

The CODM reviews the overall results of the Group as a whole, TEEEPRE FHAEE RS
except for interest income, certain unallocated corporate BREtEAFERZFBIRA - HT RS
expenses and finance costs, which is the measure of segment Bt 2 ] S B B S A B o %o SE et
result. The accounting policies of this segment are the same as T 3R B G 3 i 2 A 4 B & w R A
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. A e
Segment revenue and results vig L ONE 3
For the year ended 31 December 2013 # F2013%F 1231 H 1L F 1
Consolidated
HAEWRHE
HK$’000
THIT
SEGMENT REVENUE vig Lo
Group revenue — Cars LA —RHE 1,182,788
SEGMENT RESULTS gt
Segment loss from continuing operations — Cars A B RS S 2 B I — IR (14,558)
Interest income FEUA 962
Unallocated corporate expenses P WA B & (15,998)
Finance costs WA A (13,068)
Loss before taxation from continuing operations A 155 AR 7 ST 2 BB RIS 1B (42,662)
For the year ended 31 December 2012 #F20124F12 731 H 1L F 1
Consolidated
HEMRHE
HK$’000
THIT
(restated)
(E71)
SEGMENT REVENUE Zig LN
Group revenue — Cars LA —RHE 1,190,230
SEGMENT RESULTS g B3
Segment profit from continuing operations — Cars 2 B 48 #8855 2 R A — 1R 10,128
Interest income FLE A 564
Unallocated corporate expenses P WA B (10,519)
Finance costs FA S A (15,604)
Loss before taxation from continuing operations A G R AR AR S5 2 BRBLHT I 15 (15,431)
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7/ SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

7.  AEEERE)

Segment assets and liabilities SRR ERAR
At 31 December 2013 W20134F12H31 H
Consolidated
HEWRHE
HK$’000
FHIT
Assets &E
Segment assets — Cars I E —RE 303,030
Bank balances and cash BRAT &5 B K 269,387
Pledged bank deposits B A R AT A7 3K 73,247
Unallocated corporate assets KL B & E 47,015
Consolidated assets GEEEE 692,679
Liabilities fafd
Segment liabilities — Cars SRR 333,155
Bank and other borrowings SRAT B H A £ 196,272
Unallocated corporate liabilities /N =R 5,668
Consolidated liabilities e A 535,095
At 31 December 2012 J20124F12H31 H
Consolidated
HEWRHE
HK$’000
T
(restated)
(E)
Assets &
Segment assets — Cars SBUEE —RE 442,118
Available-for-sale investments A R E 252
Assets relating to discontinued operations FHROCKRIEREEGCERE 189,623
Loan receivables JRE B K 6,086
Bank balances and cash SRAITEE R LB A 85,780
Pledged bank deposits E A SR AT A7 3K 151,603
Unallocated corporate assets KON FEE 37,333
Consolidated assets HAEEE 912,795
Liabilities g
Segment liabilities — Cars SEAEE R 291,036
Liabilities relating to discontinued operations FRC&KIEREERZ AR 89,083
Bank and other borrowings SRAT S HAh £ 338,140
Unallocated corporate liabilities ES N WARSTN =K 3,699
Consolidated liabilities Fra A 721,958
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

7

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resource between segment:

- all assets are allocated to operating segment other than

corporate assets, bank balances and cash and pledged

bank deposits;

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segment

other than corporate liabilities and bank and other

borrowings.
Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Continuing operations:

5 BUERE (4)

NEEEMRAMEE)

7 T B BRI R - A T E R

= PRAFIEE ~ SRITEESRABE R
EAEIPRATIE AN - Fr A & EY
A Bic A

= Bk s\ B A I #R AT K H A £ &
s A BB ERE D

I i 4y JE % R

#E20134F12H31 H ILF

FRAEREE 26T

Cars Unallocated Consolidated

PHH 43 FiL HakHA
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THsTT THETT THETT

Amounts included in the w4 S A ok Ay R A

measure of segment result At AZ &H

or segment assets
Addition of property, plant NEWE - W K

and equipment 36,155 216 36,371
Depreciation of property, plant W2k ~ W B < I e

and equipment (19,317) (1,775) (21,092)
Gain on disposal of property, plant &Y - W7 Kz

and equipment I 25 1,023 = 1,023
Impairment losses on trade and B Gy B A EA IR R 2 B AE

other receivables il (3,208) (3,214) (6,422)
Allowance for inventories BB

- People’s Republic of China i PN

(“PRC”) (M e ) (26,200) - (26,200)

- Hong Kong — (2,571) - (2,571)

Impairment losses on goodwill PR 2 W 1R (308) - (308)
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (restated)

Continuing operations:

5 FE B ()

oAt 53 JUE B ()

BE20124F12H31 H I JE (F )

FE AU

Cars Unallocated Consolidated

i A4 i HEWRH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THIT Tt Tt
Amounts included in the CR i ES b %ig§29:3
measure of segment result At AZ &
or segment assets
Addition of property, plant WEYE - WS RS
and equipment 19,631 31073 22,704
Depreciation of property, plant W - Wm K e
and equipment (16,865) (1,354) (18,219)
Loss on disposal of property, B - WS KA
plant and equipment 18 (409) T (409)
Allowance for inventories 17 5 A
- Hong Kong Baie (549) (549)
Impairment losses on trade and B Gy A BE IR R 2 BB
other receivables 5 18 (1,502) = (1,502)
Information about major customers FEEEFER

No revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total

revenue of the Group from continuing operations for both

years.

Geographical information

The Group’s continuing operations are mainly located in

Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau. The following table

provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by location of

customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

R RE AR MR A EF Z I AR
s A A T R S AR SE S BN 2. 10%

b I R
AL HERERTEEET MR E
W R A R o NREFEF 2B

T H 73 A7 A< 55 8 2 A (R 785 i~ IR B
ZIFER)
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74 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) SEER (45)
Geographical information (Continued) B [ R (4)
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THT
(restated)
(E31)
Hong Kong Frits 770,179 821,057
Mainland China F B TA) 412,609 369,173
1,182,788 1,190,230

PUTF 7 i 2 BT 76 b 823 47 JF Wt ) ¥ /28
(NEFREERIEE E K e m TH) 2R

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-

current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and financial
instruments) analysed by the geographical area in which the

assets are located:

T {E -

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#T TH#TT

Hong Kong R 87,375 84,638
Singapore T m g - 697
Malaysia F5 AR VE R - 635
Mainland China A 58] A b 15,543 7,986
102,918 93,956

8. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from

LN

ASE B AR AR BE AR A R ACE SR IA Z

continuing operations is as follows: SRR

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#t T#TT
(restated)
(E71)

Sales of goods to customers, less HEMMTER » kR R K&
returns and discounts Yrn 1,035,842 1,050,693
Maintenance service income {RELES IR A 146,946 139,537
1,182,788 1,190,230

106 Auto Italia Holdings Limited 7% 1| ¥ % 4 FR /A 7]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S A TR P BE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
0 2013 4F 12 A 31 H L4

9.  OTHER INCOME 9. H A A
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#u THIT
(restated)
(E71)
Continuing operations AR BT
Commission income A 3,343 3,481
Interest income FLE M A 962 564
Dividend income R - 4,409
Subsidies income from suppliers PERE R 4 T 2 i 7,362 3,270
Others HoAth 7,414 4,559
19,081 16,283
10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10, HAbas B ER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# THIT
(restated)
(7))
Continuing operations R EET
Impairment losses on goodwill P22 WE kR (308) -
Impairment losses on trade and other 8 5 K B AR R 2
receivables, net TAE 5 e 1R (6,422) (1,502)
Net foreign exchange gains (losses) HIE B Wi A (B4R 6,324 (904)
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, HEYIE  WE KA 2
plant and equipment 45 (5 18) 1,023 (409)
617 (2,815)
11. FINANCE COSTS 11 MERA
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# THIT
(restated)
(7))
Continuing operations FEREET
Interests on bank and other borrowings SRAT R HARE EFS
- wholly repayable within five years — 54 TN A BUE R 12,825 15,288
- wholly repayable after five years —SERRBEE 232 275
Interest on finance leases 1S <giiN=¢5! 11 41
13,068 15,604
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12. TAXATION 12.  BiHE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ou T T
(restated)
(E41)
Continuing operations FHEREEY
Current tax RV A5 76
Hong Kong B 53 2,023
Other jurisdictions HAt ] 32 [ 1,214 451
1,267 2,474
Under (over) provision in prior years DATE AR B S A05 S 2 ORBBELIBEAS)
Hong Kong i 1,215 20
Other jurisdictions Al ] 35 [ (45) =
1,170 20
2,437 2,494

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the both years and the
service income for the non-PRC subsidiary with permanent
establishment in the PRC is subject to deemed profit tax rate of
20%.

The taxation for the year from continuing operations can be

reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S A TR P BE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#2013 4F 12 H 31 H LA

12.

13.

TAXATION (Continued)

12.  BeYE(4)

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-# T T
(restated)
(FE )

Loss before taxation KRB AT s 1E (42,662) (15,431)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate FEAS b TS BB % 16.5% 5 A

of 16.5% (Note) Z B (FE5E) (7,039) (2,546)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible B B A A w] H1 B S 2

for tax purpose BB 2,864 7,233
Tax effect of income not taxable WAL B H B 2

for tax purpose HHS e 2 (2,917) (3,519)
Underprovision in respect of prior years DAFEAE BB R 2 1,170 20
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R T MR L s 1H 2 B R 3,862 3,002
Tax effect of deductible temporary KT HERR TT?II] I IR 22 R

differences not recognised P is 2 5,629 -
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) ?ﬁﬁﬁ*?ﬁﬁ%ﬂ

not recognised Z i IH 5 1R 3 (222)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B} Jo5 2 T AS [F] B R 2 R 2 (1,132) (1,474)
Taxation for the year A FERLIH 2,437 2,494

Note: The domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of

the Group is substantially based is used.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 13.

I

T A S s A Al M
A -

AR BE 5 MRS SR 2 i AR

OPERATIONS
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#t T
(restated)
(E )
Loss for the year from continuing operations A4F i #4485 2675 2 iR
has been arrived at after charging: fn ﬁﬂ\ @J%IE
Auditor’s remuneration % B Bl 4 1,867 2,742
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment )2 - jit/5 K& 2 918 21,092 18,219
Staff costs: & B A -
Directors’ emoluments ik A 6,494 4,371
Salaries and allowances 34 B HERG 72,677 67,907
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR A FT K 2,712 2,896
81,883 75474
Cost of inventories recognised as expense TR B B S 2 A7 & AR 989,973 984,298
Allowance for inventories e gridii
(included in cost of inventories) (AL IR & AR) 28,771 549
Operating lease payments in respect HEY R
of rented properties BTSN 54,620 46,114
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 14,

14.

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEE’'S EMOLUMENTS

R AT BRI < S (e H

The emoluments paid or payable to each of eleven (2012: ten) E AT EUEAT 1147 (20124 : 1017) EHE K
directors and the chief executive, were as follows: FTHAFRSANZMEIT -
Other emoluments
Hoflm 2
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
ek BT HRB BAIREA
s H At Al il Pa it B 4 451
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT SR SR SR TH#T
(Note xi)
(W5Exi)
2013
Executive Directors WEH
Lee Man Fai Richard (Note i) 2SO (it 3k) - 2,387 - 15 2,402
Lee Man Bun Jeff (Note ii) 2 3CH (Wt - - - - -
Wong Tik Tung (Note iii) VEWR R (P Eid) = 1,124 - 15 1,139
William Keith Jacobsen (Note iv) A (W skiv) - 90 - 5 95
Chong Tin Lung Benny (Note v) HERHE (Wkv) - 1,109 - 9 1,118
Lam Chi Yan (Note v) ML (HHkv) £ 884 295 8 1,187
Independent Non-executive B BT %
Directors (“INEDs”)
Tan Boon Seng BioCE 180 - - - 180
Cheung Ying Kwan (Note vii) SR MEN (W sEvii) 75 - - - 75
Yin Pi Tak Peter (Note vii) FHO AR (B st vii) 75 - - - 75
Antonio Maria Santos (Note viii) FHE (MEviii) 180 - - - 180
Kong To Yeung Frankie (Note ix) ~ JT## (HfzEix) 95 - - - 95
605 5,594 295 52 6,546
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0 2013 4F 12 A 31 H L4

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 14.

14.

HERETBEKNE REERME

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEE’'S EMOLUMENTS (45
(Continued)
Other emoluments
HoA &
Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
HERk WEBRY RHkHEA
g Hfu Al M Z B4 at Bt 5% i 4 40
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tt Tt Tt T
(Note xi)
(WExi)
2012
Executive Directors WY
Lee Man Fai Richard 2K 4 2,590 c 14 2,604
Lee Man Bun Jeff E3'Qi7 = L - a1 =
Wong Tik Tung R - 1,030 - 14 1,044
William Keith Jacobsen (Note iv) B (Wtiv) 90 - - 5 95
Chua Kei Wah (Note x) B2 RGE (M) 39 = t 2 41
Non-executive Director FUES
Yue Kam Har (Note vi) REE (Hitvi) 22 - - - 2
INEDs B ES
Tan Boon Seng Bk 180 - - - 180
Cheung Ying Kwan % JE b 180 1, '3 4 180
Yin Pi Tak Peter T 180 - - - 180
Antonio Maria Santos (Note viii) R (Mviii) 60 - - - 60
751 3,620 - 35 4,406
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

14. DIRECTORS’” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 14.
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

i) The director resigned on 24 October 2013.

(ii) The director resigned on 25 June 2013.

(iii) The director resigned on 30 December 2013.

(iv) The director was appointed on 1 January 2012.
(v) Both directors were appointed on 13 June 2013.
(vi) The director resigned on 30 August 2012.

(vii)  Both directors retired on 30 May 2013.

(viii)  The director was appointed on 1 September 2012.

(ix) The director was appointed on 21 June 2013.

(x) The director was appointed on 1 January 2012 and resigned on
6 June 2012.
(xi) Performance related incentive payments were determined by

the remuneration committee. Having regard to the performance
of directors and the Group’s operating result.

Lee Man Fai Richard was also the chief executive officer of
the Company and resigned on 24 October 2013. Chong Tin
Lung Benny is also the chief executive officer of the Company
with effect from 24 October 2013. Their emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by them as the chief
executive officer.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one (2012: one) was Director whose emolument is
included in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the
remaining four (2012: four) individuals were as follows:

WO R AT B KRB &
(#)

Bt 5

(i) 72 H R 20134F 10 24 H BHE -

(ii) 7% 38 F1 201346 7125 H BT -

(iil)  FZEFEIA20134E12 430 H BHE -
(iv)  ZEFR20124E1H1HHERAT -
(v) ZEERIN20134F6 H 13 H ERAT -
(vi)  #ZEHA20124F8 A30 H BHT -
(vii) S ER20134E5 30 HIE(TE -
(viii) FZEFR20124°9 H1 HERAT -
(ix)  FEEFEA20134F6 21 HHEZRIE -

(x) W% R 20124E 1 A 1 H 3 ZAT Kt
20124F6 H 6 H BHT: -

(xi) BEHEBMEZ RS EEMER G
WEEHEE L R RAEN L CEE

25 SORR IR By AR N Fl 2 AT BUB R > R
2013410 H 24 H BHT - K FE H20134F
10 H24 H L IR A AR AN R 2 AT R - |
SCHK R 2 T L B S 1 A AT U R AR
2 B -

AL i 4 AL d > 14 (2012
L) BEE KA Eocz #
oo R T 44 (20124F : 4%) A L2 M4
mr

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T# T

Salaries and other benefits 4 S HoAth 4w A 8,084 8,072
Performance related incentive payments HAZES RN 2 854 2,702 2,700
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR A F K 45 33
10,831 10,805
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 14 #%ERITBAEZNLEEIEBEMLS

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEE’'S EMOLUMENTS (#)
(Continued)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: M 5 2 M4 4 I 4 o
2013 2012
Number of Number of
employees employees
fig B A\ % ZEUN
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001# 7t — 2,000,000% 7T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t - 2,500,000% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 #57T — 3,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000%% 70 1 1
4 4
During the both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group T TR A > A A (5] S1 48E 15) 5057 e 15 35 M
to the five highest paid individuals (including directors, the AL (BiF#ESE - BRI R) A
chief executive and employees) as an inducement to join or AT o AR 2 g I A BRI A A
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. 45 [R5 2 B 4 ol B Rk S 1
None of the directors and the chief executive waived any FATAME AR BE - A4 2 57 M AT AR R i =
emoluments during the both years. A 42 o
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15.  HBEE
From continuing and discontinued operations oA R RS R ORI AR
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RN T A N JEAS B B AR K 7 i 4R
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the URE' SN IIE /€510 N
following data:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# THTT
(restated)
(E31)
Loss s 48
Loss for the year attributable to owners of AN A N AL AR AR B i 4R
the Company and loss for the purpose of e e s B A I
basic and diluted loss per share 9 s 4H 2 e 1 (48,042) (79,270)
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183

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

15. ik E &)

& A FF AR R TR BB B (A

2013 2012
Number of Number of
shares shares
&ty 8 H liidrie - q=|

Number of shares 8

Weighted average number of ordinary shares FI{E RT3 & LA K 4 k5 48
for the purpose of basic and diluted I B RE ST 24

loss per share

2,959,452,260 2,685,140,988

No diluted loss per share for both continuing and discontinued
operations has been presented for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012 because the assumed conversion of the share
options would result in reduction in loss per share.

From continuing operations
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from

continuing operations attributable to the owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

A A i 48 25 2 2013 4F K 20124F12
H31H ILFER B RER S D& IER
HEY R EE o R E AR
058 516 5RO RE 5 S s 4R D>

2 H ¥ AR R

ZANEIE 2PN NP ERE T Y-S
(SIVE-XINE 3L T EVEEETE ¢ S

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#t T#IT

(restated)

(1)
Loss for the year attributable to owners A EV A N BG4S 4F B 4R

of the Company (48,042) (79,270)

Less: Loss for the year from W AREE DKL D

discontinued operations Z 1R (11,126) (64,641)
Loss for the purposes of calculating basic FERHER B R A S 2
and diluted loss per share from B IR AS I i 1R 2 1R

continuing operations (36,916) (14,629)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations.
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S A TR P BE

For the year ended 31 December 2013
0 2013 4F 12 A 31 H L4

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 15.  HEBEE A1)
From discontinued operations R H CA LR
Basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations ERAFECHKIEREETZER
is HK0.38 cents (2012: HK2.41 cents), based on the loss for the 11,126,000 #5 JC (2012 4 : 64,641,000 #5
year from discontinued operations of HK$11,126,000 (2012: JC) K FaliAe | A A8 M B A R as 2
HK$64,641,000) and the denominators detailed above for B2 B B A R T S HE R 0 B 2 R
both basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and 1% > 2R B O & 1F 8848 305 2 19 B R K
discontinued operations. PEEETE £50.38W5 1l (20124F :2.413541l1) -
16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W3k ~ W Kkl
Leasehold land
in Hong Kong Furniture,
under medium-  Buildings in Leasehold Machinery ~ fixtures and Motor Motor
termlease ~ HongKong  improvements and tools equipment vehicles yacht Total
LAERE
TREAEE A il i Flf-
ZHELH LpA £ £ RIR RERR 1 kB k]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T T T T Tt Tk T
Cost R
At1January 2012 201241 A1H 126 15,081 71716 17,949 29,648 35,348 17,636 229,504
Exchange adjustments Esing - - 164 4 164 26 - 584
Additions k& - - 13,365 1,068 6,604 4691 - 25,728
Disposals it (26,090) (2087 (3,531) (2079) (1,99) (20597) (176%) (76,18)
At 31 December 2012 01241231 R 16,036 12,99% 79,714 16,978 34418 19,658 - 179,798
Exchange adjustments Esimg 5 5 T 52 (62 3 T T8l
Additions k& X Y 4630 915 3,009 3699 - 4549
Transfer to investment properties HEERANE (16,036) (12,994) (3517) - - - - (32,547
Disposals e . : (10410) . (165 (21,881) 2 (3395)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HERE A (H50) 2 . (423 (459) (10,369) (10,030) L (25,088)
At 31 December 2013 013 1231A r - 06,954 17490 25,342 U742 - 134528
Depreciation i
At1January 2012 BAN1EIAIA 2,763 641 48,183 1155 21,09 11,683 4410 100,326
Exchange adjustments Eifag - - 13 i 148 % - 403
Provided for the year KEERE 673 k1Y 1079 2336 144 3740 366 2,699
Eliminated on disposals RS (2,500 (230) (5,381) (1,737) (1,633) (553) (4776) (21,79)
At 31 December 2012 120126121310 936 758 53,709 12176 24051 9,986 - 101,636
Exchange adjustments [k} - - 697 hi) (51) 10 - 684
Provided for the year KEERRE 40 3 10917 2098 3681 6,306 - B8
Transfer to investment properties dRERENE (1,337) (1,083) (1,047) - - - - (3,467)
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - (10410) - (1,694) (5801) - (17,903)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries R A AR
(note 0) (H:h40) 4 » (3751) (404 (6745) (4.455) 2 (1535)
At 31 December 2013 H013ERANA - = 50,135 13,898 19,242 6,046 - 89,321
Carrying Values L0
At31 December 2013 JA013E1A31H - - 16819 359 6,100 18,6% - 4507
At 31 December 2012 201241231 H 15,100 12,23 25,985 4802 10,367 9,672 - 78,162
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

#2013 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account their estimated residual values,

using the straight-line method, at the following rates per

annum:
Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of lease terms or 2'/2% - 5%
Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease terms or 10% - 20%
Machinery and tools 20% - 33'5%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% -20%

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

Motor yacht 5%

At 31 December 2013, property, plant and equipment with
an aggregate carrying amount of nil (2012: HK$27,336,000)
are pledged to secure certain bank borrowings granted to the
Group.

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment in respect
of assets held under finance leases was HK$360,000 (2012:

W3k ~ Wb Bk i (40
Pre& Tt 3 - WS Ml T E R T

TP AF 0 B R A R B 8 (EAR
PAELBRIE B B AR 2 A HOl A

HE b p & WIRR 521/2% - 5%

(B 1y i)
TEWELEE MR E10% - 20%
(B % A )
kLR 20% - 33Y%
B #EREHE  10%-20%
R 20% - 25%

KE 5%

2013412 31 H > W% ~ i E Kt
2 BRI ARE 5 2 (20124F 27,336,000
JC) BRI > AF £y AN MR A T ERAT (R
BEZYER -

MIEAMEHERAZEEZYE - BE
Ko St R T £5360,000%5 7T (20124F

HK$1,062,000). 1,062,000% JC) °
17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. HEWME

HK$’000
T T

Fair Value 2Pl
At 1January 2012 R20124¢11H 4,000
Disposal HeE (4,000)
At 31 December 2012 2012412 H31H -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment W Y R K 44,700
At 31 December 2013 2013412 H31H 44,700
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0 2013 4F 12 A 31 H L4

17.

18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. BEWE )
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating 7% A2 [l i 65 2 FEL 65 AT DA Bl B 0 B 8
leases to earn rer}tals or fs)r capital appreciation purp.o.ses ZF}I‘{E)%%ZBT%%%E@%E%H@Q#
were measured using the fair value model and were classified MAr AP A ¥ ¥
and accounted for as investment properties. During the year (AT & - ol M BURRT A B -
ended 31 December 2012, the investment properties were BE2012F12 31 H ILF 1 > HEY)R
located in the PRC and held under medium-term leases and (04N S R A DR B RO R S S & o
being disposed of. The above investment properties as at 31 kit 20134E12 31 H Z &Y H A4
December 2013 comprise industrial buildings and carparks BN DL b IR A3 TR E
loFated in Hong Kong, held under medium-term leases. The gé% o ) AR 0 % 72013
fair value of the investment properties at the date of transfer A e
and as at 31 December 2013 is under Level 3 of fair value FI2ABLH Z AR IR =M ¥
hierarchy and based on the directors’ valuation taking into (HSF AR > IR 5t Bk 152 5 Bl
account the recent transaction price and adjusted for the HRGWAE S TAER ZAGESE - £8
relevant circumstances. The key input is the adjustment to the ity AAH By Y 3T HA 35 5 18 A% 1E H 8.6%
recent transaction price of 8.6%. A decrease in this adjustment o [ D B Y Y AT
would result in an increase in fair value measurement of the LTS \ s :
: / . EFFEIEI > R ZIRR
investment properties and vice versa.
GOODWILL 18. WE
HK$’000
T
Cost A
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 201241 H1H &20124F12H31 H 33,379
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) t0 B e 2 | (B E40) (30,591)
At 31 December 2013 #20134£12 431 H 2,788
Impairment AR
At 1 January 2012 R20124F1 4 1H 3,268
Impairment loss recognised in the year AR N HERR 2 e 1R 27,256
At 31 December 2012 JA20124F¢12 H 31 H 30,524
Impairment loss recognised in the year A TR Tl R 2 (B 1R 308
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) H R R 2 ) (B RE40) (30,524)
At 31 December 2013 #20134F12 31 H 308
Carrying Values MR TH
At 31 December 2013 JA20134E12 31 H 2,480
At 31 December 2012 20124712 H31H 2,855

The Group tests goodwill annually or more frequently if there
are indications that goodwill may be impaired.

7S B A R AT AR B B E WL > 5]

T P B (B B BRI AT A

Wzt -
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18.

GOODWILL (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, management
compared the value in use of the relevant CGUs with the fair
value less cost to sell of the CGUs and concluded that the value
in use is higher than the fair value less cost to sell. Management
of the Group considered each subsidiary represents a separate
CGU. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of goodwill
had been allocated to three individual CGUs relating to sales
of fashion apparels amounting to HK$27,256,000, the sales
of accessories amounting to HK$67,000 and the sales of cars
amounting to HK$2,788,000 respectively. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the CGU relating to sales of fashion
apparels and accessories has been disposed through the
disposal of subsidiaries as set out in Note 40. In addition, the
Group has terminated its operation of its subsidiary, Dalian
Auto Italia Car Trading Co., Ltd (“Dalian”), goodwill related
to Dalian amount to HK$308,000 was impaired and recognised
in profit or loss during the year. As at 31 December 2013, the
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to one single
CGU of sales of cars.

The basis of the recoverable amount and its major underlying
assumptions of CGUs engaged in the sales of fashion apparels
and the sales of cars are summarised below:

Sales of fashion apparels

The recoverable amount of the CGU engaged in the sales
of fashion apparels has been determined based on a value
in use calculation. As at 31 December 2012, for impairment
assessment purposes, cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period
at a discount rate of 11.6% was used. The cash flows of the
CGU engaged in the sales of fashion apparels beyond the
5-year period of the financial budgets were extrapolated
using a steady 7% growth rate. This growth rate was based
on the relevant industry growth forecasts and did not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.
Another key assumption for the value in use calculation was
the budgeted gross margin, which was determined based
on the past performance of the CGU engaged in the sales
of fashion apparels and management’s expectations for the
market development. The Group impaired the amount of
goodwill belongs to fashion apparels of HK$27,256,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2012.
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18.

2 (4)

il

BT A s o R A B 4
A RS 2 i A (E BB A AR B 2
ST U 6 1 A AR FL W o SIS i fe A
(BN T Vol B 5 AR o 1o 2 i o R
52 [0 5 BLJg 45 ORE DR A ) 2 — (VM ST
B E A o R20124F12H31H > &
BURHED A E =M H e AR
B > 43 5l 7 A B I 255 8 45 7% 27,256,000
WG ~ B 8 B £ 67,0001 0 K K B Y
£ 752,788,000 7t » # £ 2013412 A 31
HIEAERE > I sE40 87 H > A B &%
e, fff 84 B 2 BR 4 7 AR BE (7 B0 IR B I
AT o A > AR B &R H
J& s ml R ER IR 5 A RAE (TR
) 2 RS B HEUE B R A
308,000%5 G EL FA 4F (A g (EL G 72 15 5 1A 1l
o 2013412 H31H » MEREEED
AN VE SRR R K RS e S
i o

T W (B R i HE R LA R B o
TSNS 2 Bl 7 AR B A 2 R B R
SR

I 5 8 1

R 2 TR 2 B B 2 B 4 o R BE A 2 T i [
SRR A EEFE - iR20124F12
H31H - AsRfEE - CF6FH & B et
HEZ S A S TE AT B R £511.6% 2
BAeRMER - RERFEMNEHEEL
B BEs TS EHE C H SRR
7% e R RIER - M RRT)
WA BT REN A > B A E
HABATEZ TH RIS o FE
By —EEHBZLEAEAE . iR
MFRESE g e R 2 AR
R EMEHEF S SREUEE - 52
20124F12 A 31 H R4 B > A< 4 (3 & b Iy
52 R WE &R £527,256,00085 TG
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18.

19.

GOODWILL (Continued) 18. W ()
Sales of cars FH
At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the recoverable amount of the FA20134F M 20124F12 H31 H » fE iRk
CGU engaged in the sales of cars has been determined based B8 2 Bl 4 AR B L 2 nl i e 4
on a value in use calculation. For impairment assessment TR A EERE o &AL WAE
purposes, cash flow projections based on financial budgets L fi FT /8 28 g A% E 2 547 1 A 5 T O 4%
approved by management covering a 5-year period at a PR L17% (20124F : 13.2%) 2 Bl &
discount rate of 17% (2012: 13.2%) was used. The cash flows T o EFRFHE 2B S ELEY
of the CGU engaged in the sales of cars beyond the 5-year A7 78 7 5 41 HA BA 5 TR B 2 B4 U R Y
period of the financial budgets are extrapolated using a nil FAE(20124F : 5%) Z R RIEHE - fiff
(2012: 5%) growth rate. Another key assumption for the value AEES EERXAEEEM X
in use calculation is the budgeted gross margin, which is TIRBREREHEE LB EEE AL
determined based on the past performance of the CGU engaged A R B R g R T I R R D
in the sales of cars and management’s expectations for the FE o IR » RFINEHE 2B E
market development. At the end of the reporting period, the FE A B 2 P i Tl ELE@ T >
recoverable amount of the CGU engaged in the sales of cars WO ZEAE AR 1R o BRI RS
exceeded the carrying amount, therefore, no impairment AT Ae] 3% %6 R 5 2 AT o] A& 3L AT R 5 B R
loss is considered necessary. Management believes that any R F S E 2 v S ELEE KR
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would 2 2
not cause the material change of the recoverable amounts of the
sales of cars.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. WEEE
Trademarks
EL
HK$'000
THTT
Cost and carrying values as at 1 January 2012 and A20124F1 H1H &
31 December 2012 20124F12 4 31 H Z J8A B SR i 5,400
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) HH S B S A R (B EE40) (5,400)
At 31 December 2013 J#20134F12A31H 5

The trademarks represented the legal and beneficial ownership
of the brand “Rogers” for the distribution of audio visual

products for the Group’s electrical appliances business.

PFRETE R S AR E AR T L B
2 [ SE B | i 22 30 e I E i A HE o

Annual Report 2013 43 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR A R R P B E

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

19.

20.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19. EEHEE W)
As at 31 December 2012, for the purpose of impairment testing R20124E12 31 H - 5t i BEAEAT 2 W (E
on trademarks, the recoverable amount had been determined WET 5 > w] i (] 45 B B 42 (50 1 (L
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation used RE o wkwt A B PR 4t E 2 54 3 B
cash flow projection based on financial budget approved W T R AT 3 5 11.75% Z B4 i 7
by management covering a 5-year period and discount rate T o A 5 4 ) 2 B i i AR5 % 2 B
of 11.75%. The cash flows beyond the 5-year period were SEME R R o BN T 2 R > W]
extrapolated having a steady 5% growth rate. Based on the 5 I < A A ORI E > ST 2B A
assumption applied, the recoverable amount exceeded its {BE51E -
carrying amount, thus, no impairment loss was considered
necessary.
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AEHERE
Available-for-sale investments comprises: CIRcisk=ki'd - gk
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# THIT
Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong AU IE B RO 7 2R 252 9,300
Club debentures g s - 252
Impairment loss recognised e A8 I (B 1 < (9,300)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) B B 2 | (B EE40) (252) -
- 252

Unlisted equity securities represented the securities issued by
a private entity incorporated in Hong Kong. The private entity
is engaged in the provision of digital advertising. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that their
fair values cannot be measured reliably. During the year ended
31 December 2012, an objective evidence of impairment was
considered to exist due to adverse financial position of such
private entity. For the purpose of impairment, the recoverable
amount had been determined based on value in the calculation.
The management expected there was no future economic
benefits and hence an impairment loss of HK$9,300,000 was

recognised in full against the investment cost.
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Club debentures represented the debenture in a recreation
club. Such debenture is carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss with reference to the latest

market prices.

During the year, the available-for-sale investments are

derecognised upon the disposal of subsidiaries.

20. AL ERE )

TSR — ARG T 2 - % fE
K8 2 7 B 7 T A 5 AR AT ] AR 2
at (e 1R FH(E

AR ATk R H B B A R B

21. INVENTORIES 210 AP R
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TFiBoo
Finished goods R 182,259 385,576
Spare parts T 23,792 31,001
206,051 416,577

Included in the above figures are finished goods of
HK$58,091,000 (2012: HK$115,656,000) which have been
pledged as security for bank borrowings (note 35).

22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

3t 4 %A 60.4558,091,000 4% IC (20124F -
115,656,000 7 ) 2 BB > TIAE £ i
FRERAT M5B 2 WE AR (FH3E35) -

22.  FEEHEWE

HKS$’000

Tt

Cost at 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 HA20124F1 H1H 2012412 H31 H 2 A 30,070
Disposal & (30,070)

At 31 December 2013

A20134F12 31 H i

The Group’s properties held for sales were stated at cost less
impairment. At 31 December 2012, the Group’s properties
held for sales were pledged as security for bank borrowings
(note 35). On 17 December 2012, the Group entered into sales
and purchase agreement with independent third party for the
disposal of the properties held for sale at a total consideration
of RMB24,790,000 (equivalent to HK$30,497,000). The

transaction was completed in March 2013.

A 2 AR B ) 3E T AR W E
GIBE o iA20124F12 H31H » REMEZ
FefE i B2 TIE ISR RITIE R 2 15
& (K 5E35) » jA20124E12 H17 H » A&
EEE - LB =S E SR
B By 25T oL B O Wk o MAE B
24,790,000 A\ B % (%5 [ % 30,497,000 #
JG) o #4235 T IR20134E3 H S AL ©
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B 5 KOt R K
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#ou TH#TT
(restated)
(FE51)
Trade receivables B 5 BE AR K 12,845 73,237
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W R AR (2,001) (3,770)
10,844 69,467
Purchase deposits BEFT 4 9,922 10,646
Utility and rental deposits oS R AL &4 4 2,046 7,559
Prepayments and other receivables TEAS 7 e L At B A R 3K 15,883 40,605
38,695 128,277
Trade receivables 2 5 W W SR sk
The Group allows its trade customers an average credit AEMGTHE S EFFHIORZEE
period of 90 days. The following is an aged analysis of trade W o DR S ARG WK 355 H T 2
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based 81| 2 5 5 JE WA MR BB MR 2 MR i
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period, which Mo HEA I A MRS H I
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TH#TT
Within 30 days 30K DA 3,751 36,707
31 to 60 days 31 RE60K 4,157 18,142
61 to 90 days 61 KE90K 649 6,608
91 days to 1 year 91 K £14F 2,258 7,058
Over 1 year 14E0 | 29 952
10,844 69,467
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the A 1o AE RE AT W ] B B B ASCHR R R > AR AR
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade & % B R B it b B R
receivable from the date of credit was initially granted up to the HIAR L E S R F R R

end of the reporting period. TR BT ) o
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238

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are receivables with aggregate carrying amounts
of HK$2,287,000 (2012: HK$8,010,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. As these balances were either
subsequently settled or these customers have good repayment
history, the amounts are still considered recoverable.
Accordingly, the directors believe that no impairment is
required. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

23.

50 B L At R SOR K (4
B 5 eI K ()

20134512 A31H » AL H R 5 EE
SR A3 W TR #8(E2,287,000%8 7T (20124F -
8,010,000%5 76 ) 2 MEWCBR 3Kk » 3% % &4
SRR T o AR MR AE
WEREE - NG SEERONEREES
WSR2 RFGRERLT > %50
AR B AT ] o kit > R RR R HHE
PEH IE o 25 55 [ 30 e il 5% 25 45 R B
AT AT HEH &5 o

O 7 1 (L el (1 2 0 o MR A Bk 2 it

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

T-# T T T

91 days to 1 year 91 K £14F 2,258 7,058
Over 1 year 14ED) E 29 952
2,287 8,010

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables, which were either in the severe
financial difficulties or overdue for a long period time. The
Group has made full impairment on these receivables and
considered that they are generally not recoverable.

IR HRABE 48 £ 358 o B K B 5 R 8 i
FLA 2 A A B E B 2 MEWOR AR - ASSE M
Ty S MEWOR A — AN AT i e o

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts R 28
Trade receivables B 5 BENR

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
Tt T¥oo
At 1 January A1H1H 3,770 1,009
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss 15 i [N R 2 Ik (s 15 8,079 2,977
Amounts written off as uncollectible AN AT Wi ] 45 R = (18)
Amounts recovered B 1] 4 %A > (244)
Disposal of subsidiaries A g 2 F (9,848) B
Exchange adjustments [T e, o - 46
At 31 December 12H31H 2,001 3,770

Annual Report 2013 4F# 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR A R R P B E

For the year ended 31 December 2013
#E 2013 47 12 A 31 HIL4EEE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23.  H© 5 B H A REWCRR (47)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 W Rk (45)
Other receivables H Al JENT AR
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
At 1January W1H1H 6,283 =
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss 8 25 A1 fite 58 2 I (B 5 12 4,562 6,283
Disposal of subsidiaries A g F (4,901) =
At 31 December W12H31H 5,944 6,283
The Group’s trade and other receivables denominated in AEEUEEER ANERHEZ ' S K
foreign currencies of the group entities are as follows: HABENRRIT :
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fio T T
USD B - 116
EUR [k T 42 %/ 02;
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24. LOAN RECEIVABLES 24, EWE
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T THTT
Fixed-rate loans [iE] 52 1| R A 3K - 6,086

The outstanding loan receivables were due from third parties
and unsecured and had contractual maturity dates/years
or repayable on demand as at 31 December 2012. The loan
amounts was ranged from HK$200,000 to HK$1,800,000.

Included in the carrying amount of loan receivables as
at 31 December 2012 is accumulated impairment loss of
HK$14,342,000. Full impairment was made on certain
loan receivables, which were either in the severe financial

difficulties or overdue for a long period time.

The Group has policy for allowance of doubtful debts which
is based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis
of accounts and on directors” judgement, including the current

creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.

In determining the recoverability of the loan receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the loan
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. At 31 December 2012, included
in the Group’s loan receivable balances are receivables of
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$4,182,000 which are past
due at the end of the reporting period. No impairment was
provided for loan receivables past due but not impaired as the
creditworthiness and the past collection history of the debtors
are satisfactory. Accordingly, the directors believe that there is

no further credit provision required.

As at 31 December 2012, the interest rate for the fixed-rate loan

receivables were ranging from 5.5% to 12.0% per annum.

During the year, the loans receivables are derecognised upon

the disposal of subsidiaries.

JR20124E12 A31 H > i A 1 2 FE i £
AT REUCEE = J5 K > I SRR KA A
KB H B SR R AR o B
S HNF-200,000%5 7T %£1,800,000%5 TG °

20124512 31 H » R ER R EE
1% B 5 (8 5 16 14,342,000 € - B 5t
5T BT K I ] ok R 2
BB PE S 2R B o

7B ] 2 O AR A O T AR IE 22 W
(e P R A S SR i 0 BT > DA % R 4
T4 B N 2 LR B RO Sz )
W7 7y FE R E

i T8 A R A WA I R A B R > AR
ZRAGEE KL B MEEREDE
A P R ol Bk 2 R B R R S A AT A
BEE o fA20124F12H31H » AL Z 1E
WS R A A 60 355 R T AR (55 4,182,000 5
TC R R B ) 2 BB AR K o B R
FEHE N 2 A5 B SO AR AR > s 4
At B 3 0 4 Ik (1 2 JE i 2 3 A i (.
B o B > HE A AE— S EHE
5 B -

R20124F12 H31 A - [f] 5 A1) % M i 85 3
Z RN BT 5 5.5%212.0% ©

R MR B H A B 2 W] IR A
1L THERR -
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25.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less and carry variable-rate interest at market rates
which range from 0.01% to 1.8% per annum (2012: 0.01% to
0.50% per annum).

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$73,247,000 (2012: HK$151,603,000) have been
pledged to secure short-term bank loans and undrawn short-
term facilities and are therefore classified as current assets.
The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.01% to
2.86% per annum (2012: 0.10% to 1.00% per annum).

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash denominated in foreign currencies of the relevant group

entities are as follows:

255

K 1 SR AT 12k B SRAT 45 8% M Bl &

SRAT A Bk M B A 63 AR R 1 T Ry 2 Bl
4 K JFE 3 A B LA 280 1A
4£0.01% % 1.8% (20124F : &4E0.01%E
0.50%) Z T &5 F| 51 5 1% 5 A 2R 2 J6 1
SRITHEE -

B 1 SR 17 17 3K 45 1 SR AT K DA B4
BTYTALEBRITEEZFR - 3K
73,247,000 7E (20124F : 151,603,000
TG ) A8 T HCH DL A A SR AT B R ok
R HMES > OB AREEE -
O 3 SR AT 17 3K 7% 45 4£.0.01% £ 2.86%
(20124F : H40.10% £ 1.00%) [ E |
EFHE o

AL B DA B SR B E R 2 AN EHEZ B
AP RATA R L RATRE R LB S0 F

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T T

usD EIT 41,939 48,322
RMB NS 36,450 36,548
EUR o 1,847 62
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26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B 5 Kl AR K
Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for & Ty e HoAth REAT MR X AL 36 R MBI E 5 IR
trade purposes and daily operating costs. The average credit A H B EA - REEY) 2 TG
period on purchase of goods is 30 — 90 days. The following is B30 290K o AT A MR g i R
an aged analysis of trade and bills payables presented based on B H W T 251 2 & 5 AT R R % RE AT
invoice date at the end of the reporting period. SR RE AT -
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T TH#TT
(restated)
(1)
Within 30 days 30K 23,377 57,613
31 to 60 days 31K E60K 1,091 6,775
61 to 90 days 61K FEI0K 234 1,358
91 days to 1 year 91 R E14 31 834
Over 1 year 1Mk 749 2,464
Trade and bills payables B 5 A IR B e A SR 25,482 69,044
Deposits received from customers EWE T4 201,529 165,341
Advance payments from customers & TE T ETE 44,886 65,883
Accrued charges ERTE 20,421 16,037
Other payables LA A AR K 19,459 65,955
311,777 382,260

The Group’s trade and other payables denominated in foreign

currencies of the relevant group entities are as follows:

AREEDABEBEMZ AINEGHEZ B 5 R E
A JEAT RN T

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt Tt

USD S5 4,590 20,516
EUR [k T 2,960 3,690
SGD i s t 641
THB Bk = 17,850
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.7

28.
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AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY e

On 16 July 2013, Auto Italia Limited (“AIL”), an effectively
75.4%-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower
entered into a loan note with VMS Investment Group Limited
(*VMSIG”) as lender in relation to a revolving loan facility in
the amount of HK$26 million (“Revolving Loan”). VMSIG is
interested in approximately 23.81% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2013. The Revolving Loan
was unsecured and non-interest bearing. AIL shall notify
VMSIG a proposed date of repayment for each drawdown
which may be extended by VMSIG at its sole discretion at the
request of AIL. The proceeds of the Revolving Loan was used
to finance partially the purchase of the anticipated increase
in scheduled delivery of new cars in the coming months as
well as for the general working capital of car business of the
Group. On 28 August 2013, AIL had drawn down the amount of
HK$26,000,000 which was fully repaid on 17 January 2014.

JREASF — I 3R Wi 2 ]k I

R20134E7 H16H » AN R EHEHA
75.4% 1% Bt Ji s 5] P B R A R A A
(TP IRE ) (FE RO ) B8 I 4% &
£E A BR A A (TSI ) (FF Ak
N) 5t 5 826,000,000 4% 7T A9 476 B A8 2K i
E([EEREFR]) 5T B R EEHE - jA2013
F12H31H > GBI E AN A BT
M7 vh A 47 23.81% HE 25 o 1B BR B 2K
By AR K 0 B o PR VR ELZE A TR
BUmer S g @R EEA N > ZH
A] E 55 I A5 A P Y B R A HE
R FES o (FBR K BT A5 3K B AR B
T 3 194 o B S R Ble B A S 2 A G e
TR R BE IR0 & 4 DA e JH VR AS 45 R T
EHWN— S EE S - 2013458 H 28
H > P iR E B 42 A 826,000,000
TCHIEIE > WA 20144E1 H 17 B R B
ﬁgxa%klg @

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. BT R H A s &
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-# T T
Bank overdrafts SRITHE X - 12,853
Bank borrowings SRATE & 135,946 217,365
Trust receipt loans R AE 3 59,326 106,649
Other borrowings oAt £ £ 1,000 ik )
196,272 338,140
Secured A 5 195,272 324,307
Unsecured AL 1,000 13,833
196,272 338,140
Carrying amount repayable: JREAE R Z AR TET (A -
Within one year 14E 8 186,322 326,563
More than one year, but not 4R E - (HAR 24
exceeding two years 1,655 1,622
More than two years, but not 24FLL b (BRI 5AF
more than five years 5,153 5,056
More than five years 54EP) | 3,142 4,899
196,272 338,140
Less: Amounts due within one year i : JI A B B EE F 2
shown under current liabilities 147 A B W EIE (186,322) (326,563)
Amounts shown under non-current %I A JE i B & f&IE T 2 30H
liabilities 9,950 11,577
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28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 28.  SRAT KA AbfE (A7)
As at 31 December 2013, the bank and other borrowings are R20134E12 431 H » $R4T B A8 T5
variable-rate borrowings which bear average effective interest P 1 B B A 2 (HLIREE i & 2 R %)
rate (which is also equal to contracted interest rate) at 5.24% per :5.24% (20124F : H:44.60%) 5 B2 7
annum (2012: 4.60% per annum). BEE -
Details of the pledge of assets to secure the Group’s banking R E 7 LB A 4 1 SRAT 5 B 2 RE 1S
facilities were set out in note 35. A B 535 -
The Group’s bank and other borrowings that are denominated PRAHBHAE B B 2 DIRe B A > AREE
in a currency other than the functional currency of the relevant DLW RHE 2 8047 B A RS I T
group entities is set out below:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# THIT
USD FEIC - 24,673
SGD B3 - 3,544
29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 29. R ALEAE

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum
payments lease payments
T3 ECAH 15 1 sk T ECAH 55 £+ sk B
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#n THs T R THsTT
Amounts payable under MEHEHETZ
finance leases: JREAS K
Within one year 19 160 340 149 302
In the second to fifth year EEVECRERE LRCR
inclusive (B3 E M4 240 720 223 658
More than five years 54D E - 22 - 21
400 1,082 372 981
Less: Future finance charges W R AR L 2 (28) (101) - -
Present value of lease & B BL(E
obligations 372 981 372 981
Less: Amount due for W VFENE s R
settlement within one year HE (149) (302)
Amount due for settlement VAEAR B 45 5 2 #0H
after one year 223 679
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29. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (Continued)  29.

The Group leased certain of its plant and machinery under
finance leases with terms of 4 years (2012: 5 years). The
average effective interest rates was 1.86% (2012: 4.88%) per
annum during the lease term. Interest rates were fixed at the
contract dates. The leases were on a fixed repayment basis and
no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

The Group’s obligations under the finance leases are secured by
the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purpose:

il AR A ()

AEEP A EREE N HERLSTRE
K t%2% > BI44E (20124F : 54F) - Ml
WA > P E R A 5 4R 1.86% (2012
0 4.88%) o AR A H IR E -
%55 T T 4 [ o 1 AR A s LG
AT S ATRET AT L PE o

AR 2 B AR BB L A P
T G 2 M RDAEHEA o
I i IR

VAT 25y 20 S8 30 T 45 ol B 5 HR SR T 35 2
ViR

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

Deferred tax assets I Bl JEUE = 194
Deferred tax liabilities AEFERL I A = (13)
- 181

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

PATF 2 A A 4F B2 RO AL 4F L Tl el 2 £
EIEBUHE E (AR SO E)

Accelerated

accounting (tax)

depreciation

i @& 5t

(BeE)Pr e

HK$’000

T#0

At 1 January 2012 A20124E1H1H 105
Exchange adjustments [fE b2, 4 %X 8
Credit to profit or loss FEARZ 68
At 31 December 2012 #20124F12 31 H 181
Exchange adjustments HE 52, 37 B¢ 17)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) Hh S B e 2\ (i T40) (164)
At 31 December 2013 *20134F12 H31 H -
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30.

31.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 30. IEREBLIE (A7)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused SR AR F AT R 8 A AR 2R
estimated tax losses of HK$65,003,000 (2012: HK$284,185,000) Z AR B F A B IR R 1R 7 65,003,000 5
available for offset against future profits which is subject to 7T (20124F : 284,185,000% 7T) » HEZH
agreement with the relevant tax authorities. No deferred tax H BB E R 2 Wk IR o B i R ae Al
assets has been recognised in respect of the unrecognised T H A% A AR > T S R R AN R
estimated tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit PLIE IR MR IR E BT &« s e
streams. The losses may be carried forward indefinitely. R S A o
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible AR > ANSEE 2 n] B Y 2 AR
temporary differences of HK$45,821,000 (2012: HK$5,925,000) F£445,821,000% 7€ (20124 © 5,925,000
mainly relating to accelerated accounting depreciation and Jt) » FEEINAE G T A EEEA
allowance for inventories. No deferred tax assets has been B o H A TE SRR 22 AL 5195 K 81 T 4k 38 ) AT
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences FI B T IRE 22 B 2 VT RE R ORI A
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against A7 B AT IR I A T T AL ] R S A TH
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. B o
In addition, there are no undistributed earnings of the PRC BEAR 5 iR20124F & 2013412 A 31 H olf7 48
subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 and 2013. o B B A T 2 R IR B A o
SHARE CAPITAL 31. WA
Number Share
of shares capital
Jie A 8 H Jie A
HK$'000
THTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each: B TR B0.025 70 2 4 I
Authorised: EE -
At 1 January 2012, R20124E1H1H ~ 20124F K
31 December 2012 and 2013 20134F12H31H 17,500,000,000 35,000
Issued and fully paid: ST AR
At 1 January 2012 R20124F1 H1H 2,458,918,550 49,178
Exercise of share options (note 32) A7 (4 SRR R (P E32) 8,750,000 175
Issue of shares under placement ARAB B B AT By (M5
(Note) 491,783,710 9,836
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 #20124F %20134121 31 2,959,452,260 59,189

Note: Save as disclosed in the announcement dated 20 July 2012,
a total of 491,783,710 ordinary shares of HK$0.15 each were
issued through placement to various placees, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners were independent and not
connected to the Group. The gross proceeds of HK$73,768,000

were used as general working capital of the Group.

All the shares issued rank pari passu with the existing shares in
all respects.

BHEE @ Bk H I A20124E7 H20 H 2 8 85 BT %
FEH A > A 491,783,710 ik 45 ik T
HO0.15%5 0 2 % 40 JIE £ 75 4 it 5 3517
TEZHREN(HEAEBERERER
N ¥ 5 M Sr A+ H B A 42 [ 3 4 BY
) o 19K IEAA%73,768,000% G E

FEASE I 2 — B B 4 o

P B 84T I A A8 45T T SR A A =
A R HA o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2002 Scheme

A share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 30 May 2002 for a period of 10 years. The purpose
of the 2002 Scheme was to provide incentives or rewards to
participants for their contribution to the Group and enable
the Group to recruit and retain high calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
company in which the Group holds any equity interest. The
2002 Scheme was terminated and a new share option scheme
(the “2012 Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to resolutions
passed by the shareholders of the Company on 28 May 2012.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the board may at their discretion
grants options to the following participants of the Company, its
subsidiaries and any company in which the Group holds any
equity interest, to subscribe for shares in the Company:

1) eligible employees, including directors; or

(2)  suppliers or customers; or

(83) any person or entity that provides research,

development or other technological support; or

(4) shareholders; or

(5) employees, partners or directors of any business
partners, joint venture partners, financial advisers and

legal advisers.

Options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, shall be approved by the INEDs (excluding any
INED who is the grantee of the options).
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
2002 Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
adoption date of the 2002 Scheme without prior approval by
the shareholders of the Company. Pursuant to an ordinary
resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders at the annual
general meeting held on 31 May 2011, the scheme limit of the
2002 Scheme was refreshed so that the total number of shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2002 Scheme must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company at that date. Options
granted prior to 31 May 2011 under the 2002 Scheme were not
counted for the purpose of calculating the refreshed scheme
limit of the 2002 Scheme.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total issued share capital of
the Company, without prior approval by the shareholders of
the Company. Options granted to a substantial shareholder of
the Company or an INED, or any of their respective associates,
under the 2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in any 12-month period in aggregate in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million
must obtain prior approval from the shareholders of the
Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

2002 Scheme (Continued)

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any participant in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point of time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to a substantial shareholder, or
an INED of the Company or any of their respective associates
under the 2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes
in any one year in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued
share capital or with a value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options. The
exercise period of the share options granted under the 2002
Scheme shall be determined by the board when such options
are granted, provided that such period shall not end later
than 6 years from the date of grant. The subscription price is
determined by the Board and will not be lower than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
and (ii) or the average closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant, and

(iii) the nominal value of a Company’s share.

Upon termination of the 2002 Scheme, no further options will
be granted under the 2002 Scheme. However, the rules of the
2002 Scheme will remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any option granted
prior to its termination, or otherwise to the extent as may be
required in accordance with the rules of the 2002 Scheme. All
options granted under the 2002 Scheme prior to its termination
will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the
rules of the 2002 Scheme.
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
2002 Scheme (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013, no share options were
granted (2012: Nil) or exercised (2012: 8,750,000).

At 31 December 2013, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the 2002 Scheme was nil (2012: 300,000) representing 0% (2012:
0.01%) of the issued share capital of the Company at that date.

In 2012, the weighted average share price at the date of
exercise price for share options exercised during the year was
HK$0.165.

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2012 had the
weighted average exercise price of HK$0.197 and weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.65 years.

2012 Scheme

The Company adopted the 2012 Scheme on 28 May 2012. The
purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to the participants for their contribution to the Group and
enable the Group to recruit and retain high calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and
any companies in which the Group holds any equity interest.
The 2012 Scheme will expire on the 10th anniversary of the
date of adoption. Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may at
their discretion grant options to the following participants of
the Company, its subsidiaries and any company in which the
Group holds any equity interest, to subscribe for shares in the
Company:

(1)  eligible employees, including Directors; or
(2)  suppliers or customers; or

(83) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support; or

(4) shareholders; or

(5) employees, partners or directors of any business
partners, joint venture partners, financial advisers and
legal advisers.

Options granted to a Director, Chief Executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective
associates, shall be approved by the INEDs (excluding any
INED who is a grantee of the options).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
2012 Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from
time to time. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the adoption date of the 2012 Scheme without
prior approval by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the total issued share capital of
the Company, without prior approval by the shareholders of
the Company. Options granted to a substantial shareholder of
the Company or an INED, or any of their respective associates,
under the 2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company would result in the shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in any 12-month period in aggregate in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million
must obtain prior approval from the shareholders of the
Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date
of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each grant of options.
The exercise period of the options granted under the 2012
Scheme shall be determined by the Board when such options
are granted, provided that such period shall not end later
than 6 years from the date of grant. The subscription price is
determined by the Board and will not be lower than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant,
and (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant, and
(iii) the nominal value of a Company’s share.

No share options were granted under 2012 Scheme.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The following table details and movements of the Company’s
share options granted under the 2002 Scheme held by

32. BIRRREREE (4)

PRI N > A A RIE20024F 5F
B A0 R B (B ) PR SRR

employees (including directors) during the year: A 2w )
2013 20134F
Outstanding at Lapsed Outstanding at Exercisable Exercise
Date of grant 1 January 2013 during the year 31 December 2013 period price
R20134F 20134
1A1H 12H31H
it B W ARAT B AR WARITHE ATHH it
HK$
T
9 August 2007 180,000 (180,000) - 9 August 2007- 0.2130
8 August 2013
20074-8 H9H 200748 H9H =
20134818 H
25 September 2007 120,000 (120,000) - 25 September 2007- 0.1740
24 September 2013
200749 4 25H 20074F9 4250 =
20134F9H 24 H
Total 300,000 (300,000) =
At
2012 20124
Outstanding at Exercise Outstanding at Exercisable Exercise
Date of grant 1 January 2012 during the year 31 December 2012 period price
A20124F JA20124F
¥ 1H1H 12H31H
it B 18 RAT i ERATE M ARATRE AT i
HK$
ot
11 June 2007 150,000 (150,000) - 11 June 2007- 0.1667
10 June 2013
200746 A11H 20074F6 H11H %
201346 110H
9 August 2007 180,000 & 180,000 9 August 2007- 0.2130
8 August 2013
20074£8 H9H 20074F8 19 H =
20134F8 {8 H
25 September 2007 8,720,000 (8,600,000) 120,000 25 September 2007- 0.1740
24 September 2013
200749 425 20074F9 H25H %=
20134F9 24 H
Total 9,050,000 (8,750,000) 300,000
st
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 32. EBIGRRREREE (47)

Details of the share options held by the directors included in R R 2 R R R

the above table are as follows:

FEWE -

2012 and 2013 20124F 220134
Outstanding Outstanding
at Exercise at
1 January during 31 December Exercisable Exercise
Date of grant 2012 the year 2012 and 2013 period price
20124
20124 B 20134
1H1H 12H31H
®HHEH i ARAT EWNATE AL AT A1
HKS$
ESTH
September 25, 2007 7,400,000 (7,400,000) - September 25, 2007 - 0.1740
September 24, 2013
20074F9 A 25 H 200749 H25H %
201349 H24 H
Grand Total 7,400,000 (7,400,000) -
st
33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 33. BRI E

The relevant subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to
make contributions to the state-managed retirement schemes
in the PRC based on a specific percentage of the payroll costs
of their current employees to fund the benefits. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference to
their basic salaries on retirement and their length of service
in accordance with the relevant government regulations. The
government in Mainland China is responsible for the pension
liability to these retired staff.

In addition, the Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group and each
employee employed in Hong Kong are required to make a
contribution of 5% on the employees’ monthly relevant income
with a maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,250 per month
effective from 1 June 2012 (prior to 1 June 2012: HK$1,000).

For subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
contributions are made to the defined contribution schemes by
the Group at rates specified on the rules of the schemes at the
relevant jurisdiction.

The total cost of HK$5,918,000 (2012: HK$5,881,000) recognised
to profit or loss represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group during the year.
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34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 34.

The Group as lessees

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due as

R RE
AR MR R AR LA
T AR > A P R R 2E 2 T

A B LR T 2 R AR SRR A & £ FOK
PERR Y

follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#u THIT
Within one year 14E N 44,988 41,601
In the second to fifth year inclusive  5524F 54 (5 &5 B W4) 81,081 67,271
After five years 5L b - -
126,069 108,872

Leases for rented premises are negotiated for terms of 2 to 10

years with fixed rental.
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

with tenant for future minimum lease payments under non-

RIS A BRI E B2 2 104
AH <5 [ E A5 o

A S 1 £ 2 LA

TR IR AR SRS 2 AT
R R AR T 2 R A B AR 4 A i B

cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises HERTHZBRMT
which fall due as follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T
Within one year 14EIN 2,040 -

Lease for rented premise is negotiated for a term of 1 year with

fixed rental.

ALY 35 2 B EOIR TS B B 1 - L
5 A
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35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. EEKH
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the R > AEEUT EEC KT
Group were pledged to banks to secure the bank borrowings SRAT > VEBASE B RATE B 2 1B
granted to the Group:

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#u THIT

Inventories & 58,091 115,656

Properties held for sale FRE B - 30,070

Pledged bank deposits B R ERAT A 3K 73,247 151,603

Property, plant and equipment Y3 ~ W Kl - 27,336

Investment properties il -L/E 3 44,700 -

176,038 324,665
At 31 December 2012, Wo Kee Hong Distribution Pte Ltd. #2012 4 12 1 31 H > Wo Kee Hong
(“"WKHD”) and Wo Kee Hong Marketing Pte Ltd. (“WKHM”), Distribution Pte Ltd. ([ WKHD |) &
both are the subsidiaries of the Company, have pledged its Wo Kee Hong Marketing Pte Ltd.
assets with carrying values of HK$70,911,000 to certain banks (I WKHM 1) (3 5 & 24 7] 2 Wt )& 2
to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group. WKHD and Al ) B T SRAT I R A
WKHM were disposed during the year ended 31 December 70,911,000 L 2 & & - F A 4R F
2013 as set out in Note 40. FRAT IR Z IR - W0 EE40 P K
WKHD %X WKHMC. A # %£20134F 12 A

31HILEE®E -
36. EEIFEJERY

36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group entered
into finance lease arrangements in respect of assets with a total

capital value at the inception of the leases of HK$590,000.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 5%

Apart from the amount due to a related party as set out in
note 27, the Group had entered the following significant

transactions with its related companies and group companies:

IR i N 52 5

W 27 7 2 B 4 — 45 B A+ 3R
51+ S L BRI 24 ) B 95 12 )
AT FIIEALS)

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#t R
IT consultancy fee received from B — 2 B Y A O R R R
a related party (Note) (B 3E) 186 205

Note: During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
independent consultancy agreement entered into between
AIL, an indirect subsidiary of the Company, and Mr. Michael
Adamczyk, the son of Mr. Herbert Adamczyk who is a director
of AIL and has resigned on 1 June 2012, in relation to the
provision of professional consulting services in the area of
information technology operation and organization strategy

was renewed for a term annually.
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group

during the year is as follows:

Bi5E © B 20134F & 20124F12 H 31 H 1L 4F
5 NNl 1 B /NI S = S
HHREREE R ER L (B
#20124F6 H 1 H &L ) Z FMichael
Adamczyk 54 7] 7 A BB AL R
o 78 A1 R AL 4 O e 2 S R ) IR S
Z AT R R AR A K e

FREMA B Z i

FENALEHTEERABZFHMMT -

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

RPN FH T

Fees M4 605 751
Salaries and other benefits 4 K HAb AR A 10,477 11,692
Performance related incentive payments B35 R BIAHBE 2 884 2,995 2,700
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B {K4E F & 8t 2 74 68
14,151 152 14l:

The remuneration of key management personnel is determined
by the directors having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

FERAE B Z 0 T b 5 AR R
B L T S B
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38.

39.

40.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. HAKS
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Capital expenditure in respect of Y - R K
the acquisition of property, plant A E TR
and equipment contracted but not REWZEATH
provided for - 4,493
DIVIDEND 39. kA
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended B 20134E12 4 31 H 1k 4F B2 B S IR A
31 December 2013 (2012: Nil), nor has any dividend been SR IS (20124F « f%) > i [ ¥R 45 A
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2012: nil). AT AT (] B2 UK AR, (20124F « M) -
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 40.  Hi BB 2 W

On 23 October 2013, the Company signed a disposal agreement
with Victor Glory Holdings Limited (the “Purchaser”), to
dispose the entire issued share capital of Wo Kee Hong (B.V.I.)
Limited (“WKH (BVI)”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, at a consideration of HK$112,574,000. The disposal
was completed on 30 December 2013. WKH (BVI) and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the import, distribution
and after-sales service of electrical appliances, distribution of
fashion apparels and accessories and motor yacht and these
operations were also discontinued accordingly.

The Purchaser is a company incorporated in the Cayman
islands with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially
owned by Dr. Richard Man Fai Lee, a substantial shareholder
and an executive director as at 23 October 2013, who
subsequently resigned as a director on 24 October 2013 and
ceased to be substantial shareholder on 12 November 2013
after completion of the placing of his shares in the Company to
independent placees.

Upon the completion of the disposal, the properties of the
Group are leased to the disposal group for a 12-month period at
a monthly rent of HK$170,000. The net loss on disposal of WKH

(BVI) and its subsidiaries was as follows:
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R 20134510 H23 H » 4% 2 7] B Victor
Glory Holdings Limited ([ 75 |) ##]
&R HEARXEZ R EHEA A
Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.) Limited (l WKH
BVD) ) 2z &M BETRA - KEH
112,574,000% 70 o 8 25 TH T A 20134F
12 H30 H 52 A » WKH (BVT) K H:Fff & 2
A EERBETRZED - S REER
W~ WE s e i DA S BB i N 2 A8
M #%%5 EHIPE R AR AUk -

B B[R] B 2 B S 5 M BT I 2
SCHE A (7R 2013410 A 23 H 4 = 2 i
RHRMTER) LERERHAZARS
A o RSO L HAR IR 20134F10 H 24 H
BT HE S > WA 20134F11 H 12 H 58 WL )
18 7R BN TG B LA AR R IR A AN
BETERRK -

W ETERE > REEZWED HM
170,000% 6 7 2 4 - A 12
il H o B WKH(BVI) K H i E A # 2
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40. HEMBAY 4#)

KR VEHIMEZ B I AT

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost:

2013

HK$’000

T# T

Property, plant and equipment LE: G & 9,733
Goodwill T 67
Intangible assets M & 5,400
Available-for-sale investments AR E 252
Deferred tax assets A SIE ol TE 177
Inventories & 74,104
Trade and other receivables E 5 B HoAh E AR 2K 77,323
Loan receivables JRE i B K 6,086
Pledge bank deposits E S SRAT 7 3K 62,251
Bank balances and cash SRAT & B LB 4 11,946
Tax payable A BT (16)
Other borrowing HoAh £ £ (66,564)
Obligation under finance lease FlUE AR (R (291)
Trade and other payables B 5 K HAB AT R R (74,387)
Deferred tax liabilities % S B T B 1 (13)
106,068

Non-controlling interests e 2 B i 3,632
Net assets disposed of E A G E 109,700

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: B I N T 2 R

2013

HK$’000

T# T

Consideration received B A 112,574
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE (109,700)
Realised gain on intra-group transactions S 1 N A R I 22 5 2 v s B U AR 669

Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve  Jji® 8 [l J& 2\ ) s 5558 0 8 5t

upon disposal of the subsidiaries to profit or loss [ 50 fif 5 £ 18t (2,865)
Direct transaction costs HEE 5 AR (1,210)
Loss on disposal s s 18 (532)
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 40.  HEFHE A W) (4F)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal at the date of: A H AR B U TR AR
2013
HK$’000
BRI
Total cash consideration received BB 4 E 112,574
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of W B RATA R B (11,946)
Less: Direct transaction costs W B S AR (1,210)
99,418
Loss on disposal of HK$532,000 is included in loss from A E51E532,0000 T E FEA S AR R
discontinued operations in the consolidated statement of KK B % R 20 2 s 18 (AR5
profit or loss (see note 41) and the impact of WKH(BVI) and 41) > TIWKH(BVI) S H: b i 28 7 74 4= 1
its subsidiaries on the Group’s results and cash flows in the fi] R 38 1 1 ] 3 A 4 1 S 4 I B 4 T i
current and prior periods is disclosed in note 41. RN M R4l 4 R -
41. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 41. ORI

As referred to Note 40, the loss for the year from discontinued
operations is set out below. The comparative figures in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss have been restated to

re-present the Non-car Business as discontinued operations.

WK EEA0 T At » ARAE BE A 1R KR S
ZERHEINWT - AEEHEER A Z L
RO ES > LUEM 25 IR IR
RE#IEREEY -

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

Ti#x T

Loss of Non-car Business for the year A4 B IF{RHL2EHS 2 a1 (10,031) (64,314)
Loss on disposal of Non-car Business 8 JF 155 275 2~ k18

(see note 40) (SLFfE40) (532) =

(10,563) (64,314)
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 41, DCEILREE )
The results of the discontinued operations included in the loss FEAREE R 2 O LA ER 2 2
for the year are set out below. HEIIWNT -
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#u THETT
Loss for the year from discontinued = ZR4F i B4 1 4645 215 2
operations is analysed as follows: AT
Revenue A 363,754 BVl
Cost of sales B LA (269,716) (228,748)
Other income and expenses HAbUTA KB 52 5,181 3,584
Other gains and losses At i i 2 s 18 (8,301) (44,674)
Selling and distribution costs BH S Ty B A (47,795) (48,110)
Administrative expenses ATELE: FH (49,535) (57,884)
Finance costs A5 A (3,312) (5,233)
(9,724) (63,894)
Taxation BiIH (307) (420)
Loss for the year from discontinued — 74F i £ 4% 11 8848 3685 2 48
operations (10,031) (64,314)

The carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the disposed

subsidiaries are disclosed in note 40.

O 45 B 2 W) 2 B e B RURR T (B AR

B A0S 5% -
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41.

42.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 41. CRIEREES )
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl THIT
Loss for the year from discontinued ARAEFE B4R IR B8 2 2 SRR
operations have been arrived at after EA0BR (FEA) FFI&H
charging (crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BT 45 823 774
Depreciation of property, plant and EN NGl Pk
equipment 2,636 4,480
Staff costs: fE BA
Directors’ emoluments #H A4 - -
Salaries and allowances Fra B 36,698 39,924
Retirement benefits scheme contributions HBRRAR AR B K 3,206 2,985
39,904 42,909
Cost of inventories recognised as expense THERR A B S 2 A7 B AL AR 269,176 228,748
Allowance for inventories BB (BLETE B B A )
(included in cost of sales) 1,504 6,330
Operating lease payments in respect HEMEZ KEH &R
of rented properties 11,713 11,166
Interest income (including in other AR (LFEE HABIA BB 30
income and expenses) (591) (864)
Subsidies income for suppliers (including BV SR ON
in other income and expenses) (LA TR HA A B P 32 1,265 1,202
Impairment loss on goodwill P (E R 1R - 27,256
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ] A (4
investment = 9,300
Impairment losses on loan receivables JRE WA B ek AL 4R - 8,104
Impairment on trade and other B 5 B HA RE SR o (L 1
receivables, net 6,219 7,758
Loss on disposal of properties held HERHEL S REWEEH
for sale/investment properties 1,627 838
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, B YIS ~ R R s 2 1R (lds)
plant and equipment 518 (8,358)
Cash flows from discontinued operations: ~ E# [ #EEK 2 HEeRE
Net cash flows used in operating activities %87 & B fir JTl 8 £ Ui &2 1 4 (9,698) (11,097)
Net cash flows from investing activities PG W) A5 B iR R 121,961 47,793
Net cash flows from (used in) Al T B T A (BT ) B L AR
financing activities 3,641 (23,620)

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42.

On 7 March 2014, the Company entered into an agreement
with a placing agent for a private placement to not less than six
independent investors of 500,000,000 shares of HK$0.02 each in
the Company, at a price of HK$0.125 per share.

The net proceeds from the placement of approximately
HK$60,830,000 will be used as general working capital of the
Group. The placement was completed on 20 March 2014.
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 43.

43.

THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Fully paid-up Proportion of nominal value

Aoy ) 32 BE B R 4 W) Z WA

AN TR 20134E 22012412 A31H 2 £
EWE AR Z BN

Place of incorporation/ (lass of shares and issued/  of issued capital/registered
Name of company establishment/operations held registered capital ~capital held by the Company Principal activities
ML/ Rt/ Bencun/ KRR CE LT
Ra#H RELS firsi e By ) alEA  RAE/ EREALE R
2013 212
% %
Corich Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD100 100 100 Investment holding
ERELTE HiEf 1007 i
Home Crown Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary UsD1 100 100 Investment holding
EREAME Bk 1% SRR
Smart Apex Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD1 100 100 Investment holding
ERELHE R 17 i
China Premium Lifestyle Enterprise, Inc. ~ United States Common USD122,672 498 498 Investment holding
*H ks 167257 BRER
Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary USD300 - 100 Investment holding
EREARE HiEf 3007t s
ALL Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100,000 75.4* 754%  Trading of cars and related
=Rt i B3 100,000 ¢ accessories and provision of
car repairing services
BRI RABR )
BB
Common Joy Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 i 100 Property holding
ERARAA Bk Rk 1 ES ]
Dalian Auto Italia Car Trading Co., Ltd ## Mainland China N/A RMBS5,000,000 754¢ 754*  Trading of cars
RERERERAHRA T G [uk FEH 5,000,000\ & B HER
Italian Motors (Sales & Service) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$600,000 75.4° 754*  Investment holding
BRREARA ik EiER 600,000 ¢ BRER
Noble Brand Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 By 90%  Trading of yachts and accessories
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 43. AXAwXEMEBA 6 &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Fully paid-up Proportion of nominal value

Place of incorporation/ (lass of shares and issued/  of issued capital/registered
Name of company establishment/operations held registered capital ~capital held by the Company Principal activities
Ak /R / BERcEy/ LYl eI
Ri#H RENS i R AR RAmE/SREARN  EERH
2013 2012
% %
HREERAR &l Bk 1T bl G
One Timepieces Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$12,000,000 - 100 Trading, distribution and retail of
i Ll 12,000,000 ¢ fashion accessories

RE MR ER R

Rise Champ Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 100 100 Property holding
#il HiE 1 ESHT
Technorient Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$46,168,700 75.4* 754*  Investment holding
BEARAR ik ks 46,168,700 T el
Wo Kee Administration Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100%  Treasury and administration
MR ERARAR Fik Eik 17 BEf R B
Wo Kee Hong Distribution Pte Ltd Singapore Ordinary SGD4,500,000 - 100%  Distribution of home audio and
s il 4,500,004 sk car audio equipment and
accessories
ik Yt oy
R
Wo Kee Hong Electronics Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary MYR1,000,000 i 100%  Distribution of audio equipment
SR ks 1,000,005 Y
Wo Kee Hong Finance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 - 100 Finance and money lending
MREEMHARAR Fik Eik 2T B Rf
Wo Kee Hong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2,000 i 100%  Distribution of air-conditioning
MR EEHRAH i B 2,00087C products, audio-visual
Non-voting HK$10,000,000 i - equipment, car audio and
deferred 10,000,000 ¢ other electrical appliances
ER RN NHERER  HERH
REFRRER
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 43. AXAwXEMWBA 63 2)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Fully paid-up Proportion of nominal value

Place of incorporation/ (lass of shares and issued/  of issued capital/registered
Name of company establishment/operations held registered capital ~capital held by the Company Principal activities
AR /R / BiERcEs/ ABwlfi LRI
Ri#H RENS it R AMER  RAmE/SWEARA  FEERH
2013 2012
% %
Wo Kee Hong Marketing Pte Ltd Singapore Ordinary SGD6,200,000 ol 948*  Distribution of air-conditioning
i) ik 6,200,003 A products
Wo Kee Hong Trading Sdn Bhd Malaysia Ordinary MYR5,100,000 S 100¢  Distribution of audio-visual
BARME Rk 5,100,000 equipment
R R
L REARAT Mainland China N/A USD3,000,000 - 510*  Distribution and retail of fashion
(3t TEH 3,000,000% ¢ apparels
AEREERE
BRRERER AR Mainland China N/A RMB40,000,000 754 754 Trading of cars
G [uk R 40,000,000 A F& HER
BtER Bl (i) ARA R Mainland China N/A HK$1,000,000 754 754*  Provision of pre-delivery
iy AER 1,000,008 ¢ inspection consultancy

services of Ferrari and
Maserati cars in Shanghai

R ARV TE A
SN AR

EERE R () ERAT Mainland China N/A RMB2,500,000 L 100%  Trading distribution and retail of
HE N 2,500,000\ B fashion accessories

R pHREER RN

& These entities are indirectly held by the Company. # B L B T AR N T TR o

i These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises registered # B BT P R PR R R M T 2 AN
in Mainland China. BEAE -

Ly These entities are wholly owned subsidiaries by Wo Kee Hong wt AT B Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.)
(B.V.I.) Limited, which are disposed of during the year ended Limited 2 2 &Mt & /A & > Witk &
31 December 2013, details as disclosed in note 40. 20134F12 H31 H IE A & > SEIE R

Wifata0H #e5% -
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43.

44.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Except for the loan note issued by AIL as set out in note 27,
none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period.

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

interests:

43.

44.

AR oy W) 32 BE B R 4 W Z WA (A7)

EHRRL o EREIIB AL ESNE
FER B BAEHME A o WK
B At BE T 2% R WA o B R A P A
A Z RS e Ti R

R B 5227 BT il BRI B AT 2 B
BRON > i R M S S S ] AT AT
B H RS 5 o

B AR JF 5 i B AR > JF 4 B R

2wl Z R

RN A G A BRI B A
S i) Ak

Proportion of ownership

interests and voting rights

Place of incorporation and held by non-controlling  Loss attributable to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary principal place of business interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
P ICHE e £ gid b
W 24l 4 EAUVER S E4 L B LAl HEAl Rt Fe I i
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
T#x  Ti#x  TE#x  T#x
Technorient Limited B A RAT HongKong  %if 24.6% 24.6% (7,444) (2,492) 19,657 27,861
CPLY CPLY HongKong %k 49.8% 49.8% (739) (804)  (10939)  (10,200)
Individually immaterial subsidiaries BRI A 2 (R A
with non-controlling interests RN A - (9,581)
8,718 8,080

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
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44.

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 44.

B A7 T K I 1 i HE 4% 2 JF 4 B R

THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING Al Z i ()
INTERESTS (Continued)
Technorient Limited and its subsidiaries (i) BhRARA BRI E A
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tl T
Current assets WE R 566,329 631,539
Non-current assets JE B G 95,423 88,219
Current liabilities LA (581,169) (606,275)
Non-current liabilities FRm & (223) (372)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company /A sl A A\ JE {5 fE 45 60,703 85,250
Non-controlling interests FrERHE4S 19,657 27 861
Revenue A 1,188,068 1,190,293
Expenses 53 (1,217,731) (1,200,423)
Loss for the year RAEFE R (29,663) (10,130)
Loss attributable to owners of the Company AN FEA AL R (22,219) (7,638)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling interests 7 % i ft £ 1t 542 (7,444) (2,492)
Loss for the year R ER (29,663) (10,130)
Other comprehensive income attributable to Al A ERS H At 2 T i s
owners of the Company (2,329) (466)
Other comprehensive income attributable to JE 1 IRCRE i OB Al 2 T o
the non-controlling interests (760) (152)
Other comprehensive expense for the year ARG HAD AT B 2 (3,089) (618)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to EN/NGIE 2N 3 b
owners of the Company (24,548) (8,104)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to T PR JBHE 5 B A 2 T B S A A
the non-controlling interests (8,204) (2,644)
Total comprehensive income for the year ARAEJE 2T i 55 AR (32,752) (10,748)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 1] 7 4 P A i S B % e
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating REEHHEMA i) B
activities 159,517 (55,098)
Net cash outflow from investing activities BEEE B R (2,928) (25,931)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing MBS 4 (R L) AT
activities (53,369) 90,166
Net cash inflow BEeRAFE 103,220 9,137
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44. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 44. HAHEAEERESZIEZEWE
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- Nl Z 5k ()
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(i) CPLY and its subsidiary (ii) CPLYJH[E A W

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#a Tioo

Current assets it B 2 2

Non-current assets B EE 19,733 19,733

Current liabilities i IR (74,614) (73,143)
Equity attributable to owners of the RN FHEA NG REZS

Company (43,940) (43,208)

Non-controlling interests JE 152 5 e 7 (10,939) (10,200)

Expenses and loss for the year AR BE B S 4R (1,471) (1,602)

Loss and total comprehensive expense A3\ A HEA A {5 18

attributable to owners of the Company K2 [fj BH 37 # % (732) (798)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FF ¥ A i HE A s 48 &

attributable to the non-controlling 42 TH] BA S AR

interests (739) (804)

Loss and total comprehensive expense  4S4F £ 548 K 4 1 B 3¢ 4857

for the year (1,471) (1,602)
Dividends paid to non-controlling 1] JF 422 FBOHE 4 ST A RS
interests Y R
Net cash outflow from operating activities #7185 4 i H T4 (1,471) (5,170)
Cash inflow from financing activities Pl I B B A A 1,471 5,169
Net cash outflow B4 0 TR = (1)
CPLY holds 49% equity interest in Technorient Limited CPLY A %A R~ Rl 2 49% B - AR
of which the relevant interest is reflected in note 44(i) BRI RE 25 F iy b ST E443) ©
above.
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45, INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 45. ABAARMBIRNEZER
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the A AR R 2 IR 3R 2 R
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: AFE:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#u THIT
Property, plant and equipment RGN i - 25
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries Mg A FlZ JE L& 9,227 279,875
Other receivables HoAth JE i R K 538 3,857
Amounts due from group companies JE Wi 45 [ /8 R 30H 1,104 2,558
Bank balances and cash SRATAE R B 4 107,613 2,125
Total assets W 118,482 288,440
Other payables At A AR K 3,929 3,222
Amount due to fellow subsidiaries JEASTR] 2 Bt 85 2 7 3K IH - 1,587
Amount due to a related company JREAS — [H] ] e 2> ) KIE - 441
Financial guarantee contracts IEERE A 4,344 6,317
Total liabilities A 8,273 11,567
Total net asset ARG E FE 110,209 276,873
Share capital (note 31) A (B 5E31) 59,189 59,189
Reserves (Note) Tt (M) 51,020 217,684
Total equity AR 2R 110,209 276,873
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45.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 45, fBAZ wl M #R 0 %2 &k (47)
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: Mﬂ,gj_: .
Reserves of the Company AR 2 W) fits i
Capital Share
Share redemption option Other Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BARE B
Jit i 50 it it FAbfrf L) | At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
At 1 January 2011 B201141 0 1H 52,541 251! 289 46,396 (64,441) 36,936
Profit and total comprehensive income R4 2 2 T a8 A AR
for the year - - - - 117,882 117,882
Issue of new shares under placement RARR & BT R R O
(note 31) (H2E31) 63932 2 v . ¥ 63,932
Issue of shares upon exercise of share AT (B S R I
options BT 1,617 £ (271) = - 1,346
Transaction costs attributable to issue BT BN 25 WA
of shares (2,412) - - - - (2,412)
At 31 December 2012 A20124F 1231 H 115,678 2,151 18 46,396 53,441 217,684
Loss and total comprehensive expense AR s 5 2 B SO
for the year - - - - (166,664) (166,664)
Lapse of share options BRI HER AL v 3 (18) = 18 =
At 31 December 2013 20134 12H31H 115,678 2,151 - 46,396 (113,205) 51,020
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HAE B

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T o0 T THT TH T T o
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(FE51) (FE31) (%) (E%1)
Results B3
Revenue from continuing A R T A
operations 1,182,788 1,190,230 1,114,500 906,132 784,455
(Loss) profit for the year AAERE (18 27 (55,662)  (82,239)  (23,200) 21,399  (178,970)
Attributable to: JEAL -
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE/ DN (48,042)  (79,270)  (25,422) 20,864  (169,005)
Non-controlling interests IEFE R 25 (7,620) (2,969) 2,222 535 (9,965)
(55,662)  (82,239)  (23,200) 21,399  (178,970)
Assets and liabilities VoY) &R
Total assets A 692,679 912,795 938,851 794,759 729,253
Total liabilities FEN=E (535,095) (721,958) (740,358) (595,242) (562,743)
Net assets H R R E 157,584 190,837 198,493 199,517 166,510
Equity attributable to PN/NEEIE. 2PN
owners of the Company FEALRE DS 148,866 182,757 187,309 190,600 155,875
Non-controlling interests 22 RO R i 8,718 8,080 11,184 8,917 10,635
Total equity HARERR 157,584 190,837 198,493 199,517 166,510
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Schedule of Group Property
eLEYE 5

For the year ended 31 December 2013
WA 2013 41 12 H 31 HIEARE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY "EWm¥E
Percentage held
Address Existing use Category of lease by the Group
Wk BAME FEBR ALMEA I
Workshops 01, 02, 03, 04, 05, 06 and 07 on twenty Commercial Medium-term lease 100%

eighth floor and light goods vehicle parking space

no. LGV-05 on podium level two of King Palace

Plaza, No. 52A Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan,

New Territories, Hong Kong

AR E DI ES2 AP RIE 28 2 5501 - K
0203~ 04~ 05" 0650798 54 g2
SRLGV-055E 5 7 £ i f Hi
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